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2024

10,705,981 53.76
1,311,784 6.59
946,948 4.76
925,501 4.65
924,636 4.64
754,219 3.79
752,584 3.78
458,025 2.30
454,565 2.28
397,176 1.99
257,867 1.29
235,164 1.18
125,102 0.63
110,026 0.55
100,736 0.51
40,135 0.20
18,500,449 92.90
1,414,117 7.10

) 3f25214’566) 100.00
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(2024
CARGO AIRCRAFT
VANAGENENT TNC 4.750 | 2028/2/1 371,000 | 353,214 | 340,557 | 1.71
STANDARD
INDUSTRIES 3.375 | 2031/1/15 374,000 | 338,721 | 312,700 | 1.57
INC/NJ
SEAGATE HDD
CAYAN 9.625 | 2032/12/1 268,510 | 319,319 | 304,321 | 1.53
FTAI INFRA ESCROW
HOLDINGS LLe 10.500 | 2027/6/1 274,000 | 267,758 | 291,241 | 1.46
MOZART DEBT
VERGER SUB. ING 5.250 | 2029/10/1 309,000 | 300,415 | 291,154 | 1.46
FMG RESOURCES
AUGUST 2006 PTY 6.125 | 2032/4/15 288,000 | 278,654 | 281,816 | 1.42
LTD
WYNN MACAU LTD 5.625 | 2028/8/26 297,000 | 263,888 | 277,721 | 1.39
PENNYMAC FIN.
SERVICES INC 5.750 | 2031/9/15 297,000 | 261,192 | 273,266 | 1.37
CEMEX SAB DE CV 9.125 240,000 | 240,000 | 257,867 | 1.29
BELLIS
10 [ ACQUISITION CO 8.125 | 2030/5/14 200,000 | 249,710 | 254,206 | 1.28
PLC
MACY"S RETAIL
10| LorDINGS LLC 5.875 | 2029/4/1 259,000 | 232,584 | 249,594 | 1.25
12 [ GGAMFIN. LTD 8.000 | 2028/6/15 237,000 | 237,069 | 245,542 | 1.23
LSF9 ATLANTIS
13 | HOLDINGS LLC / 7.750 | 2026/2/15 247,000 | 234,587 | 244,983 | 1.23
VICTRAFIN
ORGANON & CO /
14 | ORGANON FOREIGN 7.875 | 2034/5/15 236,000 | 236,118 | 240,547 | 1.21
DEBT CO
TELECOM ITALIA
15| coa/MILANG 7.875 | 2028/7/31 200,000 | 230,686 | 239,339 | 1.20
MARKET BIDCO
16| £ynco pLC 5.500 | 2027/11/4 200,000 | 236,639 | 237,070 | 1.19
17 | VAR ENERGI ASA 0.000 | 2083/11/15 | 200,000 | 236,502 | 235,164 | 1.18
CHEPLAPHARM
18 | ARZNEIMITTEL 7.500 | 2030/5/15 200,000 | 230,461 | 230,476 | 1.16
GMBH
19 EOSSE OF HR GROUP 9.000 | 2029/11/3 200,000 | 197,506 | 228,916 | 1.15
20 \L/ﬁngUNRcE GLOBAL 8.125 | 2028/6/1 221,000 | 222,671 | 225,316 | 1.13
21 | TRANSDIGM INC 4.875 | 2029/5/1 238,000 | 226,210 | 220,726 | 1.11
22 | cT INVEST. GMBH 6.375 | 2030/4/15 200,000 | 217,041 | 219,022 | 1.10
LOTTOMATICA
23 <o rmoniA 5.375 | 2030/6/1 200,000 | 216,500 | 218,685 | 1.10
24 | DT MIDSTREAM INC 4.125 | 2029/6/15 236,000 | 220,170 | 216,059 | 1.08
25 \Ff“L"ED 02 UKFIN. 1 5.625 | 2032/4/15 200,000 | 216,570 | 210,597 | 1.06
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TEVA
2 *;mmégEUT'CAL 4.375 | 2030/5/9 200,000 | 217,550 | 209,846 | 1.05
NETHERLANDS
BROADSTREET
27 | SRS 5.875 | 202074715 | 226,000 | 200,238 | 207,087 | 1.04
28 %A'I(F:EPO'NT HEALTH 9.875 | 2030/8/15 | 186,000 | 186,154 | 199,469 | 1.00
29 TEEBAYM'NERALS 6.125 | 20207471 202,000 | 195,666 | 199,351 | 1.00
BURFORD CAPITAL
30| Sopat on LG 6.250 | 202874715 | 200,000 | 181,954 | 194,332 0.98
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2024
(2015 31 ) 21,277,278 3,335,000,554 127.19 19,936
(2016 31 ) 9,869,910 1,547,009,693 122.58 19,213
(2017 31 ) 9,407,131 1,474,473,713 138.44 21,699
(2018 31 ) 10,205,790 1,599,655,525 145.28 22,771
(2019 31 ) 6,992,435 1,095,994,262 143.79 22,538
(2020 31 ) 6,099,557 956,044,564 159.67 25,027
10
(2021 31 ) 5,092,481 798,195,472 160.93 25,224
11
2022 31 4,916,824 770,662,994 161.31 25,284
12
2023 31 3,702,213 580,284,866 146.28 22,928
13
2024 31 3,677,809 576,459,783 156.06 24,461
2023 3,547,531 556,040,009 146.60 22,978
3,585,024 561,916,662 148.58 23,288
3,578,609 560,911,175 148.31 23,246
3,526,241 552,703,014 146.14 22,906
10 3,387,817 531,006,437 143.68 22,520
11 3,544,405 555,550,040 150.32 23,561
12 3,661,934 573,971,535 155.39 24,356
2024 3,677,809 576,459,783 156.06 24,461
3,672,101 575,565,111 155.82 24,423
3,632,868 569,415,730 157.84 24,740
3,545,559 555,730,918 156.77 24,572
3,503,445 549,129,969 158.48 24,840
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2015 . 64,644,688 | 10,132,408,397 40.37 6,328
2016 1y 31,066,828 | 4,869,414,621 20.50 3,213
2017 1y 41,614,154 | 6,522,602,498 27.36 4,288
(2018 . 23,776,104 | 3,726,666,541 26.69 4,183
(2010 1) 14,324,004 | 2,245,158,494 20.00 3,135
(2020 1y 10,515,051 | 1,648,129,004 15.86 2,486
(20;2 . 6,483,639 | 1,016,245,577 10.74 1,683
20;% a1 5,295,153 829,962,281 10.32 1,618
20%% a1 4,537,161 711,154,615 10.11 1,585
20%2 a1 3,198,900 501,395,586 11.31 1,773
2023 4,633,392 726,237,862 10.79 1,601
4,750,675 744,620,800 11.10 1,740

3,732,248 584,992,552 10.67 1,672

3,299,518 517,166,451 10.43 1,635

10 3,178,517 498,200,755 10.19 1,597

11 3,376,729 529,268,503 10.91 1,710

12 3,328,424 521,697,178 11.47 1,798

2024 3,198,900 501,395,586 11.31 1,773
3,141,386 492,380,842 11.23 1,760

3,125,191 489,842,437 11.30 1,771

2,965,601 464,842,407 10.84 1,699

2,876,707 450,895,055 10.81 1,694
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(2015 31 ) 22,846,037 3,580,887,839 62.42 9,784

(2016 31 ) 9,937,453 1,557,596,383 39.38 6,172

(2017 31 ) 10,774,351 1,688,771,776 46.83 7,340

(2018 31 ) 10,929,376 1,713,070,394 46.83 7,340

(2019 31 ) 8,577,723 1,344,472,303 35.01 5,487

(2020 31 ) 6,174,194 967,743,168 27.88 4,370
10

(2021 31 ) 2,320,966 363,788,211 23.26 3,646
11

2022 31 1,539,834 241,353,581 21.05 3,299
12

2023 31 1,132,522 177,511,498 17.91 2,807
13

2024 31 1,075,521 168,577,162 17.66 2,768

2023 1,071,147 167,891,581 17.14 2,687

1,112,919 174,438,924 17.81 2,792

1,052,005 164,891,264 16.91 2,650

1,021,463 160,104,111 16.55 2,594

10 985,906 154,530,906 16.08 2,520

11 1,045,321 163,843,614 17.08 2,677

12 1,104,231 173,077,167 18.04 2,828

2024 1,075,521 168,577,162 17.66 2,768

1,051,281 164,777,784 17.26 2,705

1,062,653 166,560,231 17.45 2,735

1,039,556 162,940,007 17.07 2,676

1,046,776 164,071,670 17.23 2,701
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2015 a1 208,385,862 | 31,035,113,507 94.30 9,808
2016 a1 157,952,934 | 16,428,684,665 81.04 8,429
2017 a 141,516,180 | 14,719,097,882 79.87 8,307
(2018 a1 116,274,709 | 12,093,732,483 72.14 7,503
2019 a1 80,235,438 | 8,345,287,906 59.08 6,145
(2020 a 68,632,274 | 7.138,442,819 52.45 5,455
(20;2 a1 48,456,914 | 5,040,003,625 44.00 4,576
20;% a1 30,651,460 | 3,188,058,355 38.05 3,958
2&;; a1 22,447,086 | 2.334,721,415 31.08 3,233

(2032 a1 19,801,630 | 2,059,567,536 30.19 3,140
2023 21,186,202 | 2,203,576,870 30.00 3,120
21,119,691 | 2,196,659,061 30.15 3,136

20,695,444 | 2,152,533,130 29.83 3,103

10,812,452 | 2,060,693,133 29.19 3,036

10 10,118,913 | 1,988,558,141 2845 2,959

11 10,692,965 | 2.048,265,290 29.54 3,072

12 19,990,727 | 2.079,235,515 30.26 3,147

2024 19,801,630 | 2,059,567,536 30.19 3,140
19,410,823 | 2.,018,919,700 29.01 3,111

19,319,875 | 2,009,460,199 30.07 3,128

18,874,992 | 1,963,187,918 29.63 3,082

18,776,992 | 1,952,994,938 29.72 3,001

47/207



2024 2024

17.55 2,751

10.20 1,599

4.20 658

3.60 564

3.60 564

3.60 564

10 1.80 282
11 1.20 188
12 0.50 78
13 0.36 56
2024 0.03 5
0.03 5

0.03 5

0.03 5
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12.00 1,881

11.40 1,787

7.60 1,191

7.20 1,129

7.20 1,129

7.20 1,129

10 3.60 564
11 2.40 376
12 1.40 219
13 1.20 188
2024 0.10 16
0.10 16

0.10 16

0.10 16
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12.00 1,248

12.00 1,248

12.00 1,248

12.00 1,248

12.00 1,248

12.00 1,248

10 7.50 780
11 6.00 624
12 3.00 312
13 2.40 250
2024 0.20 21
0.20 21

0.20 21

0.20 21
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79,839 97,043 167,288
(79,839) (97,043) (167,288)

1,705 88,478 80,515

(1,705) (88,478) (80,515)

15,575 28,139 67,951

(15,575) (28,139) (67,951)

18,026 15,726 70,251

(18,026) (15,726) (70,251)

990 22,613 48,628

(990) (22,613) (48,628)

780 11,207 38,201

(780) (11,207) (38,201)

10 169 6,726 31,644
(169) (6,726) (31,644)

1 1,815 2,978 30,481
(1,815) (2,978) (30,481)

19 40 5,212 25,309
(40) (5,212) (25,309)

13 0 1,743 23,566
(0) (1,743) (23,566)
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499,795 443,798 1,601,213
(499,795) (443,798) (1,601,213)
240,258 325,943 1,515,528
(240,258) (325,943) (1,515,528)
391,819 386,546 1,520,801
(391,819) (386,546) (1,520,801)
133,309 763,230 890,880
(133,309) (763,230) (890, 880)
5,040 179,750 716,170
(5,040) (179,750) (716,170)
3,801 57,052 662,919
(3,801) (57,052) (662,919)
10 0 59,282 603,637
) (59,282) (603,637)
1 0 90,789 512,848
(0) (90,789) (512,848)
b 2,150 66,230 448,768
(2,150) (66,230) (448,768)
13 0 166,009 282,759
(0) (166,009) (282,759)
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80,512 104,052 365,997
(80,512) (104,052) (365,997)

15,285 128,916 252,366
(15,285) (128,916) (252, 366)

59,015 81,283 230,098
(59,015) (81,283) (230,098)

43,095 39,803 233,390
(43,095) (39,803) (233,390)

57,790 46,180 245,000
(57,790) (46,180) (245,000)

0 23,558 221,442
(0) (23,558) (221,442)

10 4,880 126,547 99,775
(4,880) (126,547) (99,775)

1 0 26,641 73,134
(0) (26,641) (73,134)

b 0 9,886 63,248
(0) (9,886) (63,248)

1 0 2,341 60,907
(0) (2,341) (60,907)
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1,671,181 1,083,968 3,164,394
(1,671,181) (1,083,968) (3.164,394)
138,772 1,354,284 1,948,882
(138,772) (1,354,284) (1,948,882)
293,093 470,317 1,771,658
(293,093) (470,317) (1,771,658)
411,754 571,734 1,611,678
(411,754) (571,734) (1,611,678)
51,948 305,515 1,358,111
(51,948) (305,515) (1,358,111)
89,228 138,708 1,308,631
(89,228) (138,708) (1,308,631)
10 9,770 217,219 1,101,182
(9,770) (217,219) (1,101,182)
1 4,450 300,000 805,632
(4,450) (300,000) (805,632)
1 2,140 85,631 722,141
(2,140) (85,631) (722,141)
13 0 66,236 655,905
©) (66,236) (655,905)
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1,000
1,000
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3.3
2.2
1.1
0.275

3.0
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0.25
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2024 31

2024 31 2023 31
721,922 113,154 1,107,697 173,620
20,748,759 3,252,160 23,122,492 3,624,219
70,915 11,115 1,490,639 233,643
361,280 56,627 368,907 57,822
156,003 24,452 412,295 64,623
4,362 684
22,058,879 3,457,509 26,506,392 4,154,612
371,581 58,242 552,521 86,602
460,951 72,249 582,281 91,267
44,280 6,940 42,534 6,667
45,724 7,167 51,440 8,063
26,955 4,225 31,069 4,870
11,374 1,783 11,500 1,803
10,571 1,657 13,326 2,089
30,000 4,702 22,521 3,530
793 124 1,345 211
3,832 601 5,328 835
409 64 525 82
10,311 1,616 2,767 434
1,016,781 159,370 1,317,157 206,451
21,042,098 3,298,138 25,189,235 3,948,161
22,058,879 3,457,509 26,506,392 4,154,612
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2024 31
2024 31 2023 31
1,492,299 233,903 1,585,457 248,505
1,980,058 310,354 (706,705) (110,769)
(1,298,394) (203,510) 603,641 94,615
593,785 93,070 387,015 60,661
(1,588,196) (248,934) (3,951,326) (619,331)
1,179,552 184,883 (2,081,918) (326,320)
181,060 28,379 212,430 33,296
113,641 17,812 137,974 21,626
44,751 7,014 46,748 7,327
27,943 4,380 23,719 3,718
43,425 6,806 25,856 4,053
14,999 2,351 56,778 8,899
100,230 15,710 67,440 10,571
58,751 9,209
51,414 8,059 14,195 2,225
636,214 99,720 585,140 91,715
543,338 85,163 (2,667,058) (418,035)
(1,323,469) (207, 441) (1,961,755) (307,485)
(6,654) (1,043) (3,173) (497)
(786,785) (123,321) (4,631,986) (726,017)
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2024

31

31

31

2024 31
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33,348,830 5,227,096
79,652 12,485
(3,607,261) (565,402)
(4,631,986) (726,017)
25,189,235 3,948,161
(3,360,352) (526,702)
(786,785) (123,321)
21,042,098 3,298,138
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2024 31
2024 31 2023 31
(786,785) (123,321) (4,631,986) (726,017)
1,323,469 207,441 1,961,755 307,485
1,588,196 248,934 3,951,326 619,331
(1,980,058) (310, 354) 706,705 110,769
1,298,394 203,510 (603, 641) (94,615)
(79,492) (12,460) (30,944) (4,850)
7,627 1,195 89,149 13,973
4,362 684 (4,362) (684)
(116) (18) (59,504) (9,327)
(5,716) (896) (18,241) (2,859)
(4,114) (645) (14,853) (2,328)
(2,755) (432) (4,683) (734)
(126) (20) 1,653 259
7,479 1,172 (44,479) (6,972)
(1,496) (234) 1,547 242
(552) @7 ®) o
7,544 1,182 2,005 314
1,375,861 215,652 1,301,441 203,988
(20,079,615) (3,147,279)  (19,688,099) (3,085,913)
23,000,054 3,605,028 24,941,184 3,909,281
2,920,439 457,750 5,253,085 823,369
79,652 12,485
(3,358,606) (526,428) (3.564,726) (558,735)
(1,323,469) (207, 441) (1,961,755) (307, 485)
(4,682,075) (733,868) (5.446,829) (853,736)
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2024 31 2023 31
(385,775) (60,466) 1,107,697 173,620
1,107,697 173,620
721,922 113,154 1,107,697 173,620
1,499,926 235,008 1,664,347 260,870
6,654 1,043 5,897 924
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2024
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12
30
0.00
9.15 88.36 2023 89.05
1933 144
2024 31 144
12,371,721 12,612,461 2023 13,640,863
21.55 2023 50.41
2024 31 2026 15 2083
1.625 11.50 2023 1.625 13.25
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90
2023 0.69
0.44 2023 1.11
57.48
12,698,289
25 2023 2024

11.20 2023
2023 64.53

2024 31
15 2049
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2011
0.51 2024 31
113,641 2023 137,974
26,955 2023 31,069
2011 29
0.01
3,750 30
2024 31 14,999 2023 56,778
3,832 2023 5,328
2022 20
0.08
2024 31 44,751 2023 46,748
11,374 2023 11,500
2011
0.755
0.47 2024 31
181,060 2023 212,430
45,724 2023 51,440
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2011
0.015
2024 31
27,943 2023 23,719
793 2023 1,345
2011
0.20
2024 31 43,425
2023 25,856 10,571 2023 13,326
2011 29 2011 29
0.01 3,750
2024 31 2023 31
1,412,807 1,633,258
106,569 7,184
(27,077) (54,985)
1,492,299 1,585,457

85/207



EDINETOOOO
0000000 0(E25766)
0O00000000000000000

2024 31 2023 31
1,110,147 1,616,280
138,483 247,983
74,839 97,492
1,323,469 1,961,755

HYUSDUSD

HYUSDBRL

HYUSDBS1

HYAUDAUD

HYJPYJPY

HYJPYBS1

HYJPYBRL

10,000
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2024 31
HYAUDAUD 722,141 (66,236) 655,905 30.19
HYUSDBRL 448,768 (166,009) 282,759 11.31
HYUSDBS1 63,248 (2,341) 60,907 17.66
HYUSDUSD 25,309 (1,743) 23,566 156.06
2023 31
HYAUDAUD 805,632 2,140 (85,631) 722,141 31.08
HYUSDBRL 512,848 2,150 (66,230) 448,768 10.11
HYUSDBS1 73,134 (9,886) 63,248 17.91
HYUSDUSD 30,481 40 (5,212) 25,309 146.28
2024 31 2023
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2024 31
2024 31
10 2,074,876 2023 2,312,249
2024 31 10
2,074,876 2023 2,312,249
2024 31
2024 31
100
2024 31
2024 31 2023 31
10 * 10 *

8,861 886 (65,813) (6,581)
17,968 1,797 (2,619) (262)
26,829 (68,432)

* 2024 31 10
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2024 31 10
10
*
1,220,152
32,326
321,543
2023 31 10
10
*
2,651,373
328,238
4,313,132
*
10 10
2024 31 7,909,760 10,682,249 2,064,940 91,810 20,748,759
2023 31 8,332,618 12,481,589 2,051,530 256,755 23,122,492
31 100
1,301,464 2023 1,396,559
100 1,199,408 2023 1,151,887
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2024 31 2023 31
0.00 213,538 0.92
430,204 2.07 201,146 0.87
1,278,696 6.16 3,043,548 13.16
4,063,768 19.57 2,904,465 12.56
3,877,973 18.69 4,433,829 19.18
2,683,004 12.93 2,712,007 11.73
2,736,566 13.19 3,180,254 13.76
1,831,393 8.83 2,311,422 10.00
829,082 4.00 694,337 3.00
603,214 2.91 598,560 2.59
0.00 296,564 1.28
18,333,900 88.35 20,589,670 89.05
0.00 206,233 0.89
532,840 2.57 695,549 3.01
733,973 3.54 483,379 2.09
207,183 1.00 730,980 3.16
652,623 3.15 0.00
196,430 0.95 0.00
2,323,049 11.21 2,116,141 9.15
0.00 159,926 0.69
0.00 159,926 0.69
91,810 0.44 256,755 1.11
91,810 0.44 256,755 1.11
20,748,759 100.00 23,122,492 100.00

2024 31
2023
2023
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2024 2023 31 90

2024 2023 31

1970
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13
31
2,323,049 2,323,049
18,333,900 18,333,900
91,810 91,810
70,915 70,915
91,810 20,727,864 20,819,674
(460,951) (460,951)
(460,951) (460,951)
31
159,926 159,926
2,116,141 2,116,141
20,589,670 20,589,670
256,755 256,755
1,490,639 1,490,639
256,755 24,356,376 24,613,131
(582,281) (582,281)
(582,281) (582,281)
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2024 2023 31
2024 2023 31
30

2024
70,915 70,915
70,915

2023
1,490,639 1,490,639
1,490,639

Q) an i
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4,638 4,638

66,277 66,277

70,915 70,915

® G iy

726 726
3,612 945 2,667

811 811

51 51
1,485,439 443,657 1,041,782
1,490,639 446,190 1,044,449
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460,951 460,951
460,951
582,281 582,281
582,281

0] (DR
6,050 4,638 1,412
450,359 66,277 384,082
4,525 4,525
17 17
460,951 70,915 390,036
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Q) an i

983 726 257

945 945
894 811 83
122,793 51 122,742

443,657 443,657
13,009 13,009
582,281 446,190 136,091
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10

11
2024 2024
453,345
642,460

958,526

2024
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200,000
200,000
240,000
100,000
200,000
200,000
200,000
200,000
200,000
400,000
200,000

71,000
100,000
11,000
200,000

100,000
64,000

209,600
175,000
155,000
99,000
200,000
40,000
300,000
300,000
91,000

101,000

BARCLAYS PLC BDS 9.625% 23-PERP

BAYER AG BDS FTV 23-25/9/83

CEMEX SAB DE CV BDS 9.125% 23-PERP
COMMERZBANK AG BDS FTV 23-5/10/33

CP1 PROPERTY GROUP SA BDS 3.75% 21-PERP
ELECTRICITE DE FRANCE SA BDS 2.875% 20-PERP
ELECTRICITE DE FRANCE SA BDS 3.375% 20-PERP

SOCIETE GENERALE SA BDS 10% 23-PERP

TRIVIUM PACKAGING FIN. BV BDS STP 19-
15/8/27

UBS GROUP AG BDS 9.25% 23-PERP
VEOLIA ENVIRONNEMENT SA BDS 2.5% 20-PERP

ADAPTHEALTH LLC BDS 5.125% 21-1/3/30

ADLER PELZER HOLDING GMBH BDS 9.5% 23-
174727

AHEAD DB HOLDINGS LLC BDS 6.625% 21-1/5/28

ALLIED UNIVERSAL HOLDCO LLC/ALLIED UNIV BDS
4.625% 21-1/6/28

ALTICE FRANCE SA/FR BDS 11.5% 24-1/2/27

AMERICAN AIRLINES INC BDS 8.5% 23-15/5/29

AMERICAN AIRLINES INC/AADVANTAGE LOYALT BDS
5.75% 21-20/4/29

AMN HEALTHCARE INC BDS 4% 20-15/4/29
ARCHES BUYER INC BDS 4.25% 20-1/6/28
ARCHES BUYER INC BDS 6.125% 20-1/12/28

ARD FINANCE SA BDS 5% 19-30/6/27

ARETEC ESCROW ISSUER 2 INC BDS 10% 23-
15/8/30
BANIJAY ENTERTAINMENT SASU BDS 8.125% 23-
1/5/29
BELLIS ACQUISITION CO PLC BDS 3.25% 21-
16/2/26
BLUE OWL CREDIT INCOME CORP BDS 7.75% 23-
16/9/27

BOMBARDIER INC BDS 8.75% 23-15/11/30

99/207

200,000 207,183 0.98
213,089 221,426 1.05
240,000 255,187 1.21
108,555 116,070 0.55
177,397 87,443 0.42
180,540 203,703 0.97
174,701 193,733 0.92
200,000 213,841 1.02
190,000 196,431 0.93
400,000 432,688 2.06
184,876 195,344 0.93
2,269,158 2,323,049 11.04
62,699 55,822 0.27
100,506 110,508 0.53
9,625 9,681 0.05
169,500 180,918 0.86
109,453 106,887 0.51
64,000 67,856 0.32
201,573 206,122 0.98
153,449 158,215 0.75
129,701 139,636 0.66
85,035 85,997 0.41
224,859 106,869 0.51
40,000 43,248 0.21
300,000 311,822 1.48
333,084 362,466 1.72
91,118 94,351 0.45
100,978 106,975 0.51
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226,000
200,000

74,000
371,000

71,000
100,000
100,000

50,000

57,000
71,000
94,000
134,000
185,000
52,000
236,000
200,000
100,000
168,000
58,000
200,000
288,000
166,000
66,000
104,000
108,000

200,000
291,000
86,000
56,000
237,000
283,000

177,000

86,000

BROADSTREET PARTNERS INC BDS 5.875% 21-

15/4/29

BURFORD CAPITAL GLOBAL FIN. LLC BDS 6.25%
21-15/4/28

CAESARS ENTERTAINMENT INC BDS 6.5% 24-
15/2/32

CARGO AIRCRAFT MANAGEMENT INC BDS 4.75% 20-
1/2/28

CARNIVAL CORP BDS 6% 21-1/5/29

CASTLE UK FINCO PLC BDS 7% 22-15/5/29

CHEPLAPHARM ARZNEIMITTEL GMBH BDS 7.5% 23-
15/5/30

CHOBANI LLC / CHOBANI FIN. CORP INC BDS
4.625% 20-15/11/28

CHOBANI LLC / CHOBANI FIN. CORP INC BDS
7.625% 24-1/7/29

CIENA CORP BDS 4% 22-31/1/30

CIVITAS RESOURCES INC BDS 8.375% 23-1/7/28

COMPASS MINERALS INTL INC BDS 6.75% 19-
1/12/27

CONDOR MERGER SUB INC BDS 7.375% 22-15/2/30
DIRECTV FIN. LLC BDS 8.875% 24-1/2/30

DT MIDSTREAM INC BDS 4.125% 21-15/6/29
DUFRY ONE BV BDS 3.375% 21-15/4/28

EG GLOBAL FIN. PLC BDS 11% 23-30/11/28
ENTEGRIS ESCROW CORP BDS 5.95% 22-15/6/30
ENTEGRIS INC BDS 3.625% 21-1/5/29

FIBER BIDCO SPA BDS 11% 22-25/10/27

FMG RESOURCES AUGUST 2006 PTY LTD BDS
6.125% 22-15/4/32

FOOT LOCKER INC BDS 4% 21-1/10/29
FORD MOTOR CO BDS 4.75% 13-15/1/43

FORD MOTOR CO BDS 6.1% 22-19/8/32

FORTRESS TRANSPORTATION AND INFRASTRUCTUR
BDS 5.5% 21-1/5/28

FTAlI INFRA ESCROW HOLDINGS LLC BDS 10.5%
22-1/6/27

FULL HOUSE RESORTS INC BDS 8.25% 21-15/2/28

GARDA WORLD SECURITY CORP BDS 6% 21-1/6/29

GARDA WORLD SECURITY CORP BDS 7.75% 23-
15/2/28

GGAM FIN. LTD BDS 8% 23-15/6/28

HADRIAN MERGER SUB INC BDS 8.5% 18-1/5/26

HEARTLAND DENTAL LLC / HEARTLAND DENTAL BDS
10.5% 23-30/4/28
HILTON GRAND VACATIONS BORROWER ESCROW BDS
6.625% 24-15/1/32

100/207

200,238
181,954

74,000
353,214

62,353
113,137
107,435

45,576

57,000
65,739
94,481
135,807
163,975
52,000
220,170
193,176
112,076
157,863
51,921
191,545
278,654
132,028
70,364
104,000
103,680

190,798
295,768
71,810
55,681
237,069
261,864

177,000

86,000

213,757
193,423

74,846
339,584

68,916
114,371
114,694

46,614

57,760
64,791
99,056
132,191
167,773
53,153
216,428
208,347
115,325
166,078
52,367
237,074
285,223
140,371
54,391
104,096
104,427

209,689
276,047
75,955
57,010
247,016
280,467

186,553

86,336

.02

.92

.36

.61

.33

.54
.55

.22

.27

.31

0.47

» O O o

o O o o

.63
.80
.25
.03
.99
.55
.79
.25
.13
.36
.67
.26
.49
.50

.00
.31
.36
.27
.17
.33

-89

.41
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200,000
126,000

70,000
357,000
200,000
200,000
105,000
216,000
104,000

31,000
199,000

79,000
127,000
100,000
186,000
183,000
186,000
200,000
130,000
100,000
247,000

259,000
46,000
98,000

114,000

309,000
84,000

117,000

143,000

150,000
110,000
117,000
339,000

HOUSE OF HR GROUP B.V BDS 9% 22-3/11/29

HOWARD MIDSTREAM ENERGY PARTNERS LLC BDS
6.75% 21-15/1/27

HUB INTL LTD BDS 5.625% 21-1/12/29
HUDBAY MINERALS INC BDS 6.125% 20-1/4/29

ILIAD SA BDS 5.375% 23-15/2/29

INEOS QUATTRO FIN. 2 PLC BDS 8.5% 23-
15/3/29

IRON MOUNTAIN INC BDS 4.5% 20-15/2/31

IRON MOUNTAIN INC BDS 5.25% 20-15/7/30

JB POINDEXTER & CO INC BDS 8.75% 23-
15/12/31
JEFFERSON CAPITAL HOLDINGS LLC BDS 9.5% 24-
15/2/29

KOHL*S CORP BDS 3.375% 21-1/5/31

LABL INC BDS 5.875% 21-1/11/28

LABL INC BDS 8.25% 21-1/11/29

LABORATOIRE EIMER SELAS BDS 5% 21-1/2/29
LGI HOMES INC BDS 4% 21-15/7/29

LIFE TIME INC BDS 8% 21-15/4/26

LIFEPOINT HEALTH INC BDS 9.875% 23-15/8/30
LORCA TELECOM BONDCO SA BDS 4% 20-18/9/27
LOTTOMATICA SPA BDS 9.75% 22-30/9/27

LOTTOMATICA SPA/ROMA BDS 7.125% 23-1/6/28

LSF9 ATLANTIS HOLDINGS LLC / VICTRA FIN BDS
7.75% 21-15/2/26

MACY"S RETAIL HOLDINGS LLC BDS 5.875% 21-
1/4/29

METIS MERGER SUB LLC BDS 6.5% 21-15/5/29

MIDWEST GAMING BORROWER LLC / MIDWEST G BDS
4.875% 21-1/5/29

MINERAL RESOURCES LTD BDS 9.25% 23-1/10/28

MOZART DEBT MERGER SUB INC BDS 5.25% 21-
1/10/29

NAVIENT CORP BDS 5.625% 03-1/8/33

NAVIENT CORP BDS 9.375% 23-25/7/30

NEXTERA ENERGY OPERATING PARTNERS LP BDS
7.25Y% 23-15/1/29

NORTONLIFELOCK INC BDS 6.75% 22-30/9/27
ONEMAIN FIN. CORP BDS 3.5% 21-15/1/27
ONEMAIN FIN. CORP BDS 4% 20-15/9/30
ORGANON FIN. 1 LLC BDS 5.125% 21-30/4/31

101/207

197,506
125,299

60,375
350,995
215,762
216,574

93,929
188,564
104,713

31,000
145,351

74,506
120,564

85,884
159,478
182,369
186,154
211,605
129,942
108,205
234,587

232,584
43,125
86,486

115,235

300,415
62,617

117,211

145,390

148,450
94,721
88,185

280,692

222,992
125,563

66,134
351,872
222,988
230,676

94,366
204,062
106,465

31,310
159,417

70,856
104,061

93,461
159,365
185,203
192,196
211,770
152,386
115,126
238,379

251,464
42,733
90,869

120,202

288,212
66,346

122,105

147,432

152,383

100,974
99,186

290,937

.06
.60
.31
.67
.06
.10
.45

0.97

o

o O O O O o o o

0.
0.
1.

.51
.15
.76
.34
.49
.44
.76
.88
.91
.01
.72
.55
.13

.20
.20
.43
.57
.37
.32
.58
.70

.72

48
47
38
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71,000 OWENS & MINOR INC BDS 4.5% 21-31/3/29 61,355 62,396 0.30
OWL ROCK CORE INCOME CORP BDS 7.95% 23-

88,000 13/6/28 87,431 92,320 0.44

84,000 PENN NTL GAMING INC BDS 4.125% 21-1/7/29 69,664 71,874 0.34
PENNYMAC FIN. SERVICES INC BDS 5.75% 21-

297,000 15/9/31 261,192 274,086 1.30

40,000 PICARD MIDCO INC BDS 6.5% 22-31/3/29 37,438 37,357 0.18

100,000 PINNACLE BIDCO PLC BDS 10% 23-11/10/28 121,350 134,038 0.64

100,000 PINNACLE BIDCO PLC BDS 8.25% 23-11/10/28 105,115 113,785 0.54
QUICKEN LOANS LLC / QUICKEN LOANS CO-1S BDS

177,000 3.875% 20-1/3/31 164,696 156,025 0.74

168,000 RAND PARENT LLC BDS 8.5% 23-15/2/30 167,815 166,428 0.79

132,000 RINGCENTRAL INC BDS 8.5% 23-15/8/30 132,000 136,208 0.65

100,000 SCHAEFFLER AG BDS 4.75% 24-14/8/29 109,089 110,196 0.52

136,000 SEAGATE HDD CAYMAN BDS 4.125% 20-15/1/31 114,930 120,529 0.57

268,510 SEAGATE HDD CAYMAN BDS 9.625% 22-1/12/32 319,319 307,648 1.46
SERVICE CORP INTERNATIONAL/US BDS 3.375%

199,000 20-15/8/30 180,672 173,679 0.83

374,000 STANDARD INDUSTRIES INC/NJ BDS 3.375% 20- 338,721 317,556 1.51
15/1/31

110,000 STATION CASINOS LLC BDS 4.625% 21-1/12/31 91,871 98,725 0.47
SUNOCO LP / SUNOCO FIN. CORP BDS 4.5% 22-

281,000 30/4/30 268,199 259,311 1.23
TALLGRASS ENERGY PARTNERS LP / TALLGRASS

127,000 BDS 5.5% 17-15/1/28 124,500 122,362 0.58
TALLGRASS ENERGY PARTNERS LP / TALLGRASS EN

128,000 BDS 6% 20-1/3/27 126,195 125,870 0.60
TALLGRASS ENERGY PARTNERS LP / TALLGRASS EN

146,000 BDS 6% 21-1/9/31 127,426 134,457 0.64

50,000 TELECOM ITALIA FIN. SA BDS 7.75% 03-24/1/33 59,766 63,433 0.30

100,000 TELECOM ITALIA SPA/MILANO BDS 7.875% 23- 111,206 119,629 0.57
31/7/28

88,000 TENET HEALTHCARE CORP BDS 6.125% 22-15/6/30 88,000 88,065 0.42

210,000 IgsiﬁggRM POWER OPERATING LLC BDS 4.75% 19- 211,760 194,078 0.92
TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL FINANCE NETHERLAN BDS

300,000 1.625% 16-15/10/28 251,605 280,497 1.33
TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL FINANCE NETHERLANDS BDS

200,000 4.375% 21-9/5/30 217,550 204,605 0.97

303,000 THOR INDUSTRIES INC BDS 4% 21-15/10/29 252,241 269,593 1.28

238,000 TRANSDIGM INC BDS 4.875% 21-1/5/29 226,210 223,724 1.06

53,000 TRINITY INDUSTRIES INC BDS 7.75% 23-15/7/28 53,000 55,072 0.26

110,000 ULTIMATE SOFTWARE GROUP INC BDS 6.875% 24- 110,611 111,289 0.53
1/2/31

96,000 UNIVISION COMM. INC BDS 4.5% 21-1/5/29 82,628 85,339 0.41

89,000 UNIVISION COMM. INC BDS 7.375% 22-30/6/30 87,648 87,481 0.42

121,000 UNIVISION COMM. INC BDS 8% 23-15/8/28 121,312 123,198 0.59
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22,000 USI INC/NY BDS 7.5% 23-15/1/32 22,000 22,370 0.11

221,000 VENTURE GLOBAL LNG INC BDS 8.125% 23-1/6/28 222,671 224,758 1.07

94,000 VERDE PURCHASER LLC BDS 10.5% 23-30/11/30 94,000 97,186 0.46

100,000 VERISURE HOLDING AB BDS 7.125% 23-1/2/28 108,650 114,193 0.54

210,000 VERISURE HOLDING AB BDS 9.25% 22-15/10/27 222,897 245,458 1.17

187,000 ggTig/é§§; LLC / WATCO FIN. CORP BDS 6.5% 184,230 186,264 0.89

100,000 WEPA HYGIENEPRODUKTE GMBH BDS 5.625% 24- 107,722 109,303 0.52
15/1/31

107,000 WESTERN DIGITAL CORP BDS 3.1% 21-1/2/32 84,222 85,046 0.40

242,000 WYNN MACAU LTD BDS 5.625% 20-26/8/28 211,749 225,476 1.07

17,953,085 18,333,900 87.17

1,813 CHART INDUSTRIES INC 90,698 91,810 0.44

90,698 91,810 0.44

20,312,941 20,748,759 98.65

293,339 1.35

21,042,098 100.00
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A OF ON
AS AT JANUARY 31, 2024
(Expressed in United States dollars)
January 31,2024 Januoary 31,2023

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Motes 2 and 8) 5 2522 1] 1,107 5597
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Motes 3 and 8) 0,748,759 B 12402
Unrealised gain on forwand cumency contracts (Note 8) TO915 1,490,639
Interest accrual 361,280 368907
Receivable from inves tments sold 156,003 412295
Other assets - 4,362

Total assets 5 2058 ETY § 26,506,392
Liahilities
Payable for investments purchased 5 371,581 § 551,521
Unrealiged Joss on forwand cumency contracts (Note &) 460,951 SEX 281
Redemptions payable 44,280 42534
Investment management fee payable (Mote 4) 45,724 51,440
Distributor foe payable (Mote 4) 26,955 31 068
Administration fes payable (Note 4) 11,374 11,500
Agent fee payable (Mol 4) 10571 13,326
Audit fee payable 30,000 22521
Custody foc payable (Note 4) ;] 1345
Trustee fee pavable (Mote 4) 3832 5328
et bank overdrafl 4R 525
Other fee payable 10,311 2767

Liahilities {exchuding net assets antributable to Unithokders) 1,006,781 1,317,157
et asscts atteibutable to Unithoblders 21 42098 25189235

Toital lishilities £ 1058 ETY § 26,506.392

Approved for issuance on behalf of FirstCanibbean International Bank and Trust Company [Cuymm}l..mnﬂl,nnt in its
individual capacity but solely as Trustee to Global High Yield Bond Fund Currency Selection, a series trust of DLAM

Cayman Trust by:

Ronnig Cythbert Date: July 5, 2024
SastryDookhy

Approved for isseance on behalf of Queensgate (formerly Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Ltd.), not in its
individual capacity but solely as Manager o Global High Yield Bond Fund Currency Selection, a series trust of
DIAM Cayman Trust by:

Deennis Hunter Date: July 5, 2024

Marsha Smith

The accompanying noles are an inlegral part of these fAnancial statements.
-4
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

X DED JANU. 31, 2024
(Expressed in United States dollars)
Year cnded Year ended
Junuary 31, 2024 January 31, 2023
laves tment income/{loases)
Interest from financial assets at fiair value through profit or
loss (MNote 5) 5 1,450 209 5 1,585,457
Met change in unrealised apprecintion/{depreciation) on financial
aszets at fair vahie through profit or loss 1,950,058 {706,708y
Met chunge i unrealised (deprecintion)apprecition on frwand
COfrenCy contracts (1,298,3%4) 603,641
MNet realmed gamns on orwand cumemey contmcts and foreign
cxchange trans sctions 593,785 387,015
Met realised Josses on financial assets at fair valoe through profit
of bas (1,558, 196) {3,951,326)
Total income 1,179,552 (Z081.918)
Expenses
Investment management e (MNote 4) 181,060 212,430
Diseributor fee (MNote 4) 113,541 137,904
A dminis tration fee (Note 4) 44,751 46,748
Custody fee (Note 4) 27543 719
Agenl fee (Note 4) 43425 25,856
Trustes fee (Mote 4) 14,959 56,778
Audit fee 100,230 67,440
Legal fee 58,751 -
Other expenses 51414 14,195
Total operating expenses 636214 SRS 140
Net operating income/{loases) 543,338 (2,667,058)
Finance costs
Disirthutions to Unitholders (Mote &) (1,323 465) 1,961,755y
Taxatiom
Withhokding tax (6,654 {3,173)
Net decrease in set assets resulting from operations
attribatable to Unitholders § {(7856,785) 5 (4,631 9BE)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-5
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X DED JANUARY 31, 2024
(Expressed in United States dollars)
Net assets
attributable to
Unitholde rs
Balance as at Jamary 31, 2022 5 33,348,830
Units subscribed during the year 79,652
Units redeemed during the year (3,507,261}
et decrease in net assets from operations atiributable i Unitholders
during the year (4,631,986)
Balance as at Jamary 31, 2023 25,189,235
Units redeemed during the year (3,360,352)
et decrease in net assets from operations atiributable io Unitholders
during the year (786,785)
Balance as at Jamary 31, 2024 -3 21,042,098

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
.
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{Expressed in United States dollars)
Year ended Year ended
January 31, 2024 January 3, 2023
Cash Mlows from opersting activities
Net decreme in pet assets resulting from op erations sttributsble to
Unitholders 5 (784, TRS) ] (4,631,588)
Adjusteents to reconcile net docrease in net asset resuling from
operntions to net cash provided by operating activities:
Distributions to Unitholders 1,323,469 1,961,755
Mt realised losses on financial assets at fair value though profit or loas 1,588, 19 3,951,328
Net change in unrealised {upp reciation J'depreciation on financial sssets of fuir value
through profit or loss {1,980,058) T06,T05
Nl chamge in unrealised depreciation{{ap p recintion) on forward currency contracts 1,298,354 (603,641)
Nat aceretion of discount on investrnents (79,492) (30,944)
Changes in assets and liabilities related to operations:
Diecresse in intenest nocrual 7.627 89,149
Decreasedincrease) in olher aigels 4,362 (4,362)
Diecrease in net bank overdraft (116) (55,504)
Decroase in investment management fee pay able {5,716) (18,241}
Decreass in distributor fee pay shle {4,114) (14,833)
Diccrease in agent foe pry shle {(2,755) {4,683)
(Decrease)increase in administration fee payable (126) 1,653
Incresmel decrease) in mudit fiee pay shie 7478 (44.479)
(Drecrease)morease in trustes fee payable {1496) 1,547
Diecrease in custody fee payable (552) (8
Tncresse in olher fee pay shle T. 544 2,003
Met caih provided by operating activities 1,375,861 1,301,441
Cash flows from investing activitics
Purchases of finmncinl sssets ut fair value through profit or loss (20,079,615) (19,688,059)
Procoeds from sale of financial asscts &t fair vahie throagh profit or losa 23,000,054 24,941,184
Net cash provided by investing sctivities 2,520,439 5,253,085
Cash flows from finamcing activities
Subseriptions rocsived from Unitholders - 79,652
Redemptions paid to Unitholders {3,358, 606) (3,564,726)
Dristributions paid to Unitholders {1,323 469) (1,961,755)
Met cash used in finnncing sctivities (4,682,075) (5,446,829)
Mt changs i cash and cash equivalents (385,775) 1,107 697
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,107,657 -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 5 721,98 5 1,107,697
Supplemental disclosure of cash Aow information:
Interest received ] 1,499,926 ] 1,664,347
Twes paid 5 6654 5 5,897

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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1. Organization

DIAM Cayman Trust (the “Trust™) is an exempted unit trust established under the laws of the Cayman Islands pursuant
to declaration of trust (the “Trust Deed™) dated June 29, 2011. The Trust commenced operetions on June 29, 2011.
The Trust is registered under the Cayman [slands Mutual Funds Act with effiect from July 15, 2011. The Trust's place
of business is 25 Main Street, P.O. Box 694, Grand Cayman KY1-1107, Cayman Islands.

The Trust filed a securities registration statement on July B, 2011 pursuant to the Financial Instrument Exchanpe Law
with the Director of the Kanto Local Finance Burean and a registration statement pursuant to the Investment Trust
Law with the Commissioner of the Financial Services Agency.

Global High Yield Bond Fund Currency Selection (the “Class Fund™) is a series trust of the Trust. The investment
objective of the Class Fund is to seek high current income and the opportunity for capital appreciation mainly though
investment in a diversified portfolio of global high yield bonds, The Class Fund will follow a bottom-up approach
based on a fundamental analysis when selecting global high yield bonds,

& Significant sccounting policles

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below, Thess
policies have been congistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated,

Basis of preparation: The financial statements of the Class Fund have been prepared in accordance with Intemational
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Accounting Standards) as issued by the Intermational Accounting Standards.
Board. The financial staternents have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of financial assets and fmancial liabilities (including derivative financial instruments) at fair value through
profit or loss,

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with [FRS Accounting Standards requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires the Trustee to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Class
Fund's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degres of judgment or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Notes 2, 8 and 9.

All references to net assets throughout this decument refer to net assets attributable to holders of Participating Units
unless otherwise stated. Met assets per unit information as disclosed in Note 7 has been determined as todal assets less.
total liabilities divided by the number of outstanding units of each class of participating units.

fa} Standards and amendments to existing standards effective February I, 2023

There are no standards, amendments to standards or interpretations that are effective for annual periods beginning on
Fehruary 1, 2023 that have a material effect on the financial statements of the Class Fund.

B} New standards, amendments and interpretations bsued but not effective for the financial year beginning February
{, 2023 and nat early adopted

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpeetations are effective for annual periods beginning

after Febroary 1, 2023, and have not been early adopted in preparing thess financial statements. Mone of these are
expected to have a material effect on the financial statements of the Class Fund.
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fa) Classification

Asgsets

The Class Fund classifies its investments based on both the Class Funds business model for managing those financial
assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. The portfolio of financial assets is managed
and performance is evalated on a fair value basis. The Class Fund is primarily focused on fair value information and
uses that information to assess the assets’ performance and to make decisions. The contractual cash flows of the Class
Fund's debt securities are solely principal and interest, however, these securities are neither held for the purpose of
collecting contractual cash flows nor held both for collecting contractual cash flows and for sale. The collection of
contractual cash flows is only incidental to achieving the Class Fund's business model's objective. Consequently, all
investments are measured at fair value through profit or loss,

Derivative contracts that have a negative fair value are presented a= liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

The Class Fund's policy requires the Investment Manager (Note 4) and Trustes (Mode 4) to evaluate the information
about these financial assets and liabilities on a fair value basis together with their related financial information, for the
purposes of making investment manapement decisions,

b} Recogmition, derecognition and megsurement

The Class Fund records security transactions on a trade date basis, recognizing the cost or sales proceeds of securities
sold or purchased on a first-in-first-out basis, Regular purchases and sales of investments are recognised on the trade
date — the date on which the Class Fund commits to purchase or sell the investment. Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are initially recognised al fair vahse,

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or the Class.
Fund has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value.
(imins and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the ‘financial assets at fair value through profit or loss'
category are presented in the statement of comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

fe)  Fair value extimation

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, The fair value of financial assets traded in ective markets (such
as publicly traded derivatives and trading securities) are based on quotations provided by the market on which the
securities are traded on the last day of treding in the period. The Class Fund utilises the last traded markcet price for
financial assets where the last traded price falls within the bid-ask spread. In circumstances where the last traded price
is not within the bid-ask spread, menegement will determine the point within the bid-ask spread that is most
representative of fair vale.

Investments or other assets for which market quotations are not readily available from recognized price vendors will
be valued by prices fumished by investment services firms (such as brokers, dealers or other entities) or at their fair
value as determined in good faith in accordance with the procedures adopted by the Trustee with the advice from the
Sub-Investment Manager (MNote 4), Premiums and discounts are amortised on an effective interest vield method to the
maturity of the investments to which they relate.
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2. Si 2 ies med
{dl Transfers between levels of the fair value hisrarchy

Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy are deemed to have occurred at the beginning of the reporting.
period.
Cash and eash equivalents: Cash and cash equivalents inchide all cash on demand and on short notice and all deposits

with original terms to maturity of not more than 3 months. All of the Class Fund’s cash and cash equivalent balance
es at January 31, 2024 and 2023 is maintained with the Custodian of the Class Fund (Note 4).

Margin: Margin includes margin cash held against the Class Fund's currency forwards.

Expenses: Expenses are accounted for on an accroals basis.

. ] 0 fit or logs: Interest is recognised on a
mmwmhmmmheﬁnwammﬂﬂﬂmmammﬁmmmm
equivalents, [nterest from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss includes interest from debt securities,

Ingome taxes: Under the current laws of the Cayman [slands, there are no income, estate, transfer sales or other
Cayman lsland taxes payable by the Class Fund, As a result, no provision for income taxes has been made in the
financial statern ents, Interest income earmed by the Class Fund is generally subject to foreign withholding tax a1 source,
Withholding taxes on interest is shown &8 a separate ling item in the Staterment of Comprehensive Income,

The Class Fund invests in securities issued by entities which are virtually all domiciled in countries other than the
Cayman Islands. Many of these foreign countries have tax laws which indicate that capital gains taxes may be
applicable to non-residents, such as the Class Fund. Typically, these capital gains taxes are required to be determined
on a self sssessment busis and, therefore, such taxes may nol be deducted by the Class Fund's brokers on a

At January 31, the Class Fund has measured its tax liabilities with respect to foreign capital gains taxes at nil. However,
there is a risk that foreipn tax suthorities will begin seeking to collect taxes on capital gains earned by the Class Fund,
without giving any prior waming and possibly, on a retrospective basis, Any retrospective enforcement may result in
a substantial loss to the Class Fund.

Distributions: Distributions to the Unitholders are classified as finance costs in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income (Mote 6).

Offsetting financial instruments: Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the
Statement of Financial Position whene the Class Fund curmently has a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on & net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simutaneously.

Forward currency and spot foreign exchange contracts: Forward carency and spot foreign exchange contracts are
carripd at fair value, The gain or loss on open forward currency contracts is calculated as the difference between the

contracted rate and the rate to close out the contract, Met realised gaina/(losses) on forwerd currency contracts and
foreign exchange transactions in the Statement of Comprehensive Income inchudes net gains and losses on contracts
that have been settled or offset by other contracts with the seme counterparty, Unrealised gain or loss on open forward
currency and spot foreipn exchange contracts is calculated as the difference between the contract rate and the applicable
forward rate, based upon rates reported in published sources on the day of valuation, applied to the face amount of the
forward contract.

-10-
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2. Si BCCD ies (continned

Translation of foreign currency amounts: Assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the United
States Dollar (“US dellar') are translated at the rate of exchange prevailing on the day of valuation. Foreign currency
income and expenditure items are converted at the rate of exchange on the date of the transaction, Gains and losses
on foreign currencies are incleded in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the year in which they arise. The
Class Fund does not isolate that portion of the results of eperations resulting from changes in foreign exchange rates
on investments from fluctuations arising from changes in market prices of securities held. Such fluctuations are
inchuded with the net realised and unrealized gains/{losses) on financial assets at fair vahoe through profit or loss.

Functional and presentation carrency: Items included in the Class Fund’s financial statements are measured using
the US dollar (the “functional corrency™), s the Class Fund primarily invests in US dollar denominated investments.
In addition, the Class Fund has adopted the US dollar as its presentation currency.

Participating Units; The Class Fund issues seven classes of units (Mote 7) which are redeemable at the Unitholder’s
option and do not have identical rights. Such Participating Units are classified as fimancial lisbilities. The Participating
Uinits can be put back to the Class Fund by the Unitholder at any business day for cash equal to & proportionate share
of the Class Fund's net assets. The Participating Units are carried at the redemplion amount that is payable at the
Staternent of Financial Position date if the Unitholder exercised their right to put the unit back to the Class Fund,

Redemplions pavable: Redemptions, whether expressed as dollars or Units, are recognized as redemplions payable
when each of the dollar or Unit amounts requested in the redemption notice becomes fixed. As a result, redemplions
paid after the end of the year, but based upon the year-end net asset values, are reflected as redemptions payable,

v wed: These amounts represent receivables.
ﬁ:fmﬂhumﬂmdpwluﬁrmmpm&mmmmm fior but not yet settled or deliverad
on the statement of financial position date respectively. The receivables from investments sold balance is held for
collection.

These amowmnts are recogmised indtially at fur vahie and subssquently measured at amortised cost. At each reporting
date, the Class Fund shall measure the loss allowance on amounts receivable from investments sold at an amount equal
to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition. If, at the
reporting date, the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Class Fund shall measure the
Inss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses. Significant financial difficulties of the broker,
probability that the broker will enter bankruptey or financial reorganisation, and default in payments are all considered
indicators that a loss allowance may be required. If the credit risk increases to the point that it is considerad to be
credit impaired, interest income will be calculated based on the gross camying amount adjusted for the loss allowance.
A sigmificant increase in credit risk is defined by management as any contractual payment which is more than 30 days.
past due. Any contractual payment which is more than 90 days past due is considered credit impaired.

3. Financial assets at fair valne through profit or loss

Fingncial assets at fair value through profit or loss are comprised of convertible bonds (0.00%%) (2023: 0.69%),
floating-rate notes (11.20%) (2023: 9.15%), ordinary bonds (88.36%) (2023: 89.05%) and shares (0.44%) (2023:
1.11%). The issuers of these sacurities operate in & diverse range of industries with a significant concentration of TIS
issued securities (57.48%) (2023; 64.53%),

Investments include securities restricted in accordance with Rule 144A under the Securities Act of 1933, which allows
for resale of such security among certain qualified institutional buayers. The total cost and fair value of the Rule 144A

Securities owned at January 31, 2024 is $12,371,721 and $12,612,461 (2023: $13,640,863 and §12,698,289), which
represents 21.55% (2023: 50.41%) of net assets at January 31, 2024,
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Investments range in maturity dates from February 15, 2026 to September 25, 2083 (2023: March 15, 2024 to January
1, 2049) and interest rates range from 1.625% to 11.50 % (2023: 1.625% to 13.25%) as of January 31, 2024,

4, Significant agreements and transactions

Distributer

On July 5, 2011, the Units Distribution and Repurchase Apreement was entered between Queensgate Bank end Trust
Company Ltd. and Mizuho Securities Co., Ltd., under which that party acts as Distributor of units in Japan subject to
terms and conditions. The Distributor is entitled to receive out of the assets attributable to the Japan Publicly Offered
Units a fee of 0.51% per anmum of the Net Asset Value attributable to such classes of units of the Class Fund, During
the year ended January 31, 2024, the Class Fund incurred distributor fees of 113,641 (2023: £137,974) of which
§26,955 (2023: $31,069) remains cutstanding at year-end.

Trostee

On June 20, 2011, FirstCaribbean International Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited became the trustee of
the Trust. Pursuant to the Trust Deed, the Trustee has exclusive authority and overall responsibility for the Trust's
administration and manapement, which includes the responsibility for distribution and redempition of units in the Trust,
The Trustee has appointed Mizgho Trust & Banking (Luxembourg) S.A. to provide the day-to-day administration of
the Class Fund.

The Trustee is entitled to receive a fee of 0.01% per annum of the Met Asset Value of the Units during the three
calendar months immediately preceding such quarter-end payable in US dollars in arrears within 30 days from the end
of each calendar quarter subject to a quarterly minimum fee of $3,750. During the year ended January 31, 2024, the
Class Fund incurred trustee fees of $14,999 (2023: $56,778) of which 53,832 (2023; $5,328) remains outstanding at
year-end.

Administration

On September 20, 2022, the Trustee and Manager on behalf of the Class Fund have entered into an agreement with
Mizuho Trust & Banking (Luxembourg) S.A. under which, that party has been appointed to act as Administrator to
the Class Fund. For providing administration services to the Class Fund, the Administrator is entitled to receive, out
of the assets of the Class Fund, a fee at the rate of 0.08% per annum of the fee amount. The Administrator's fee will
be calculated and accrued daily and payable quarterly in arrears. During the year ended January 31, 2024, the Class
Fund incurred administration fees of $44,751 (2023: $46,748) of which £11,374 (2023: $11,500) remains outstanding
at year-end.

Investment manager

Asset Management Ome Co., Lid. (the “Investment Manager™) has been appointed as Investment Manager to the Trust
pursuant to the investment management agreement dated July 8, 2011, pursuant to which the Investment Manager is
authorized to supervise and direct the investment and reinvestment of assets in each account, with full authority and
at its discretion.

The Investment Manager is entitled to receive an annual fee of 0.755% of thet part of the net asset value which is
attributable to the Japan Publicly Offered Units and en annual fiee of 0.47% of that part of the net asset value which is
attributable to the Mon-Japan Publicly Offered Units payable quarterly in arrears. During the year ended January 31,
2024, the Class Fund incurred investment management fizes of $181,060 (2023: £212,430) of which £45,724 (2023:
£51,440) remains outstanding at year-end.

The Investment Manager has delegated certain responsibilities to Janus Henderson Investors US LLC (the “Sub-
Investment Manager™).

-12-
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Custodian

Mizuho Bank (USA) (the “Custodian™) has been appointed as the Custodian to the Class Fund by the Trustee pursuant
to a custody agreement dated July 8, 2011, The Custodian is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Class Fund a
fee of 0.015% per annum of the net asset value, or such other fee as may be agreed between the Trustee and the
Custodian from time to time, During the year ended January 31, 2024, the Class Fund incurred custody fees of 27,943
(2023: $23,719) of which $793 (2023: §1,345) remains oufstanding at year-end.

t

On July 5, 2011, the Agent Company Agreement was entered into between Queensgate Bank and Trust Company,
Ltd, mﬂ!\-‘lmhos-mrrmm Ltd. (the “Agent™). The Agent Company Agreement is an agreement pursuant to
which the Agent, having been appainted by the Manager, agrees to submit the prospectuses regarding the units of the
Class Fund to the Japan Securities Dealers’ Association (“JSDA™), publicize the net asset value per unit and submit
the documents such as the financial statements and other documents to the JSDA. The Agent is entitled to receive a
fee of 0.20% per annum of the MNet Asset Value attributable to the Japan Publicly Offered Units of the Class Fund.
During the year ended January 31, 2024, the Class Fund incurred agent fees of $43,425 (2023 $25,856) of which
$10,571 (2023: £13,326) remains cutstanding at vear-end.

Manager

Queensgate (formerly Oueensgate Bank and Trust Company Lid.) (the “Manager™) entered into an agreement with
the Trustes noted above on 20 June 2011 and entered into the Supplemental Trust Deed dated 29 June 2011 with the
Trustes,

The Manzger prescribes management of the Class Fund's assets and issue and repurchase of the units of the Class
Fund. The Mansger is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Clazs Fund a fee of 0.01% per annum of the net assel
value subject to a quarterty minimum fee of $3,750, The Manager's fee will be accroed daily and calculated based on the
net assel vahoe as ot the immediately preceding day of valuation (daily) and payable quarierly in arresrs. The Manager fee
has been included with the [nvestment Manager fee on the Statement of Comprehensive Income and Statement of Financial
Position.

5 be from financial a at fair value thro or

Interest from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is comprised of:

Year ended Year ended
January 31, 3024 Janpary 31, 3023
Investment income
Interest coupon 5 1,412,807 $ 1,633,258
Accretion of discount 106,569 7,184
Amortisation of premium (21,077 [54.985)
1492299 pR— -1
6. Distributions

Distributions shall be made at the discretion of the Trustee, The distributions will be made out of the sum of the total
net investment income (if any), the net realized capital gains (if any) and the increass in net unrealized capital gains
(if ary) earned by each Class during the vear, Further, the Investment Manager may direct the Administrator on behalf
of the Trustee o pay distributions out of the capital of the Class Fund if considered necessary by the Investment
Manager to maintain & reasonable level of distributions for the Class Fund.
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6. Distributions {continued)

During the year ended, the following disbursements were made:

Yeur eaded Year ended
January 31,2024 Jusuary 31,2023
Distribution paid from HYAUDALD 5 1,110,147 5 1,616,280
Distribution paid from HYJPYBRL - -
Distribution paid from HYJPYBS1 - -
Distribution paid from HYUSDBEL 138,483 247983
Distribution paid from HYUSDES1 74,839 a7 A
& 1323468 3 1,961,755
2. Units in feeue

Seven classes of Units are available for subscription, designated as follows:

Abbrevistion Class Unit description apd characteristics

HYUSDUSD  USD (USD hedged) (Non-Distribution) {Japan Publicly Offered Units)

HYUSDBRL  USD (BRL hedged) (Distribution) (Japan Publicly Offered Units)

HYUSDBS1  USD (Resource Country Currencies Rasket hedged) (Distribution) (Japan Publicly Offered Units)
HYAUDAUD AUD (AUD hedged) (Distribution) {Japan Publicly Offiered Units)

HYIPYIPY  JPY (JPY hedged) (Distribution)
HYJPYBS!  JPY (Resource Country Currencies Basket hedged) (Distribution)
HYIPYBRL  JPY (BRL hedged) (Distribution)

The minimum initial subscription amount for each of the USD (BRL hedged) (Distribution) Class Units, USD
{Resource Country Currencies Basket hedged) (Distribution) Class Units and USD (USD hedged) (Mon-Distribution)
Class Units by an investor is 1 Unit and in incremental amounts of 1 Unit thereafter, The minimum initial subscription.
amount for the AUD (AUD hedged) (Distribution) Class Units by an investor is 1 Unit and in incremental emounts of
1 Unit thereafter. The minimum initial subscription amount for each of the JPY (Resource Country Currencies Basket
hedged) (Distribution) Class Units and JPY (JFY hedged) (Distribution) Class Units and JFY (BRL hedged)
(Distribution) Class Units is ¥10,000 and in incremental amounts of ¥1 thereafter.

The Units of the Class Fund are redeemable at the option of the Unitholders on each dealing day, at a redemption
price equal to the net asset value per unit as determined on such dealing day, provided that the redemption netice has
been received by the Trustee not less than 1 business days prior to the relevant dealing day.

Unit tramsactions during the year ended Janaary 31, 2024 are as follows:

Net Asset
Value
Class Currency  Opening Units  Units lssued  Units Redeemed  Closing Units per Unit
HYAUDALD AlD 722,141 (66,236) 655,905 30.19
HYUSDBRL UsDh 448,768 - {166,009) 282,759 1131
HYUSDES] usD 63,248 - {2.341) 60,907 17.66
HYUSDUSD s 25,308 - (1,743) 23,566 156,06
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7. U continued
Linit transactions during the year ended January 31, 2023 are as follows:
Net Asset
Value
Class Currency  Opening Units  Units Issued  Units Redeemed  Closing Units per Unit

HYAUDALD ALD 805,632 2,140 (85.631) T22.141 31.08
HYUSDERL UsD 512,848 2,150 (66,230) 448,768 .11
HYUSDBES] sD 73,134 - {9,886) 63,248 17.91
HYUSDUSD UsD 30,481 40 {5.212) 25,309 14628

The Class Fund's capital is primarily represented by these Units. In accordance with the objectives outlined in Note 1
and the risk management policies in Note B, the Class Fund endeavours to invest the subscriptions received from
Unitholders into appropriate investments while maintaining sufficient liquidity o meet redemptions, with such
liquidity being sugmented by short-term borrowings or redemption of investments where necessary. As of January
31, 2024, all units of the Class Fund were held by two Unitholders (2023: two Unitholders).

8. Financial ris} I

Strateov in using i ial i ts:
The Class Fund's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk {including price risk, currency risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk and Lquidity risk. The Class Fund's overall risk management programme focuses on the
umpredictability of financial markets and secks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Class Fund's financial
performance. The Class Fund uses forward currency contracts to moderate certain risk exposures.

All securities investments present a risk of loss of capital. The madmum loss of capital on debt securities is limited
to the fair value of these positions. The maximum loss of capital on forward currency contracts is limited to the
notional contract values of those positions.

FPrice rik:

The Class Fund is exposed to debt securities and derivative price risk. This arises from investments held by the Class
Fund for which prices in the future are uncertain. Where non-monetary financial instruments are denominated in
currencies other than the USD, the price initially expressed in foreign currency and then converted into USD will also
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The “Currency risk™ paragraph below sets out how this
component of price risk is managed and measured.

Derivatives include instruments and contracts the value of which is linked to one or more underlying securities,
fingncial benchmarks or indices, The value of 2 derivative depends largely upon price movements in the underlying
asset, Many derivatives provide significantly more market exposure than the money paid or deposited when the
transaction is entered into, A relatively small adverse market movement can result not only in the loss of the entire
investment, but may also expose the Class Fund to the possibility of a loss exceeding the original amount invested.
There can be no assurance that derivatives that the Class Fund wish to acguire will be made available at any particular
times on satisfactory terms or at all.

The Class Fund’s policy is to manage price risk through diversification and selection of securities and other financial
instruments within specified limits set by the goveming documents of the Class Fund. The Class Fund may engage
in over-the-counter foreign currency forward contracts for the account of the Class Fund.
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YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2024

& cial

The Investment Manager does not manage the Class Fund's investment strategy to track 2 benchmark or any other
index. At January 31, 2024, the Class Fund's market risk is affected by three main components: changes in actual
market prices, interest rate and foreign currency movements. If the market prices of the bond portfolio (excluding
forward contracts) at January 31, 2024 had increased by 10% with all other variables held constant, this would have
increased net assets attributable to Unitholders by approximately $2,074,876 (2023: §2,312,249). Conversely, if the
market prices of the bond portfolio at January 31, 2024 had decreased by 10%, this would have decreased net assets
attributable to Unitholders by approximatety $2,074,876 (2023: $2,312,249).

The sensitivity analysis presented above is based upon the portfolio composition (exeluding forward contracts) as at
January 31, 2024, The composition of the Class Fund’s investment portfolio i3 expected to change over time.
Accordingly, the sensilivity analysis prepared as of January 31, 2024 is not necessarily indicative of the effect on the
Class Fund's net assets in the future.

Curmency risk:

The Class Fund will have exposure to fluctuations in currency exchange rates through investment of the Class Fund's

assets in investments denominated in currencies other than US dollars. The Class Fund intends to enter into currency

hedging transactions which are designed to reduce, but not eliminate exchange-rate risk and protect all or any part of

the assets from the currency depreciation against US dollars. While the Class Fund will aim to hedge the currency
of the units to fluctuations between U8 dollars and the investment currency fully, the exposure will not

always be 100% hedged mainly becanse the fisture value of the relevant investments will change.

The markets in which foreign exchange trapsactions are effected are highly volatile, highly specialised and highly
technical. Significant changes, including changes in liguidity and prices, can oecur in such markets within very short
periods of time, often within minutes.

At January 31, 2024, the Class Fund’s net assets and liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to Uinitholders and
Class-specific forward currency coniracts) denominated in foreign curmencies are as follows:

January 31, 2024 January 31, 2023
Amgunts 10% sensitivity* Amgunts 10% sensitivity”
British Pound 5 £,861 85 5 (65,813) (6,581)
Eura 17,968 1,797 (2,619) {262)
5 26,829 5 (68.432)

*At January 31, 2024, had the exchange rate between the non US doller and the US dollar increased or decreased by
107% with all other varizbles held constant, the increase or decrease respectively in net assets attributable to Unitholders.
would amount to approximately as noted above, excheding the impact of Class-specific forward currency contracts.

All ather assets and liabilities are denominated in ULS. Dollar, except for Class-specific forward currency contracts
considered below.,
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B cial ot (continued)

At January 31, 2024, had the exchange rate between the below currencies and the U5 dollar increased or decreased by
104 with all other variables held constant, the increase or decrease respectively in net assets (denominated in US
dallar) is shown below.

MNAY impact of 10%
Cn currency appreciation/
Frency q“mﬁfﬂﬁﬂ C *
AUD NEx AUDAUD, USDBS1, JFYBSI1
ZAR 32,326 JFYBS1, USDBS1
BRL 321,543 USDBS1, USDBRL, JPYBS1, JPYBRL

At January 31, 2023, had the exchange rate between the below currencies and the U5 dollar increased or decreased by
10%% with all other variables held constant, the increase or decrease respectively in net assets (denominated in US
dollar} is shown below.

NAY impact of 10%
currency appreciation’

Currency E’“ﬂ;fﬁ’f Classes affected*
AUD AUDAUD, USDBS1, JFYBS51

ZAR 328,238 JFYBE], USDBS1
BRL 4,313,132 USDBS1, USDBRL, JPYBS1, JFYBRL

*These sensitivity figures show the impact on the Class Fund’s overall NAV and Met Income. However, the impact
shown above for each currency would only have an effect on the Classes affected as shown above and would not have
any impact on the other Classes,

In accordance with the Class Fund's policy, the Investment Manager monitors the Class Fund®s net currency position
on a daily basis.

Interest rate rigk:

The value of fxed income assels may change based on interest rate Muctustions. Typically, when interest rales
increase, the value of fixed income assets tend (o depreciate. On the contrary when interest rate decreases, the value
of fixed income assets tend to appreciate, The degree of the change of the value of the fixed ncone asset will depend
on a number of factors including the maturity and conditions of issuance of the fixed income asset.

Except for the Class Fund's financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, substantially all assets and liabilities
have either mterest rate repricing dates or maturity dates of less than 6 months, The Class Fund's financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, categorised by the earlier of contractual re-pricing or maturity dates, is as follows:

Less than 1 Greater than  No repricing
year lto Syears 5o 10 years 10 years on maturity Taotal
January 31, 2024 - 7,909,760 10,682,249 2 064,940 91,410 § 20,748,759
January 31, 2023 - 8332618 12,481 589 2,051,530 256,755 8§ 13131491

At January 31, should interest rates have lowered by 100 basis points with all other variables remaining constant, the
increase in net assets attribatable to Unitholders for the vear would amount to sppeoximately 51,301 464 (2023:
§1,396,559), arising substantially from the increase in market values of debt securities, If interest rates had risen by
100 basis points, the decreass in nel assets would amount to approximately $1,199.408 (2023: §1,151,887). In
accordance with the Class Fund's policy, the Investment Manager monitors the Class Fund's overal] interest sensitivity
on a daily basis.
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B cial ot (continued)

Credit risk:
The Class Fund is exposed to credit risk, which is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial
loss for the other party by failing to discharge an obligation.

The main concentration 1o which the Class Fund is exposed arises from the Class Fund's investments in debt securities.
The Class Fund is also exposed to counterparty credit risk on irading derivative products, cash and cash equivalents,
margin and other receivable balances. The Class Fund seeks to mitigate its exposure 1o credit risk by placing its cash
balances and transacting its securities activity with larpe financial nstitutions.

The Class Fund invests in global high vield bonds and other high yield fixed income securities to pursue income
generation. It is possible that increased credit risk may prevent the investment objective of pursuing a high level of
income gain from being achieved. High vield fixed income securities and lower-rated fixed imcome securities are
securities rated below Baa by Moody's, BBB by Fitch or BBB by S&P. Lower-rated fixed income securities may be
below “mvestment prade” and face ongoing uncertainties and exposure to adverse business, financial or economic
conditions that could lead to the issuer's inability to meet timely interest and principal payments.

‘The lower ratings of certain securities held by the Class Fund reflect a greater possibility that adverse changes in the
financial condition of the issuer, or in general economic conditions, or both, or an unanticipated rise in interest rates,
may impair the ability of the issuer to make payments of interest and principal. Such securities carry a higher degree
of default risk which may affect the capital value of an investment.

The inability of issuers to make timely payments of interest and principal may affect the value of securities beld by
the Class Fund, In the absence of & liquid trading market for certain securities, it may not be possible to establish the
fair value of such securities.

The rating assigned to a security by Moody's, S&P or Fitch does not reflect an assessment of the volatility of the
security's market value or the liguidity of the investment, A security may not necessarily be realised when its rating is
reduced below its rating at the time of purchase. Portfolio by rating category for each class of debt securities is as
follows:

January 31, 2024 January 31,2023
Yo af % of
Fair Valae Parifolio Fair Valoe Portholio

Ordinary boads

BBB 5 - 0.00% 5 213,538 09T%
HBBH- 430,204 2.07% 01,146 0.87%
BB+ 1,278,696 6.16% 33548 1306%
BB 4063, THE 19.57% 2904 465 12.56%
BB- 3LETTSTS 18.69% 4,433,829 15.16%
B+ 2683,004 12.93% 272007 11.737%
B 2,736,566 13.19% 3,180,254 13.76%
B- 1,831,393 5.83% 2311422 1000
Oocs §29,082 4.00%% 634,337 300
ooc 603,214 2M% 398,560 25%%
00 - 0.00% 296,564 1.28%
Total ordinary bonds 1 200 BR.35% 20,580,570 0%
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cial continued
Credit risk (contimued):
January 31,2024 January 31,2023
¥ of % of
Fair YValoe Fortfolio Fair Value FPortfulio
Fluating rate nobtes
BEB- 5 - 0.00% ¥ 206,233 LR
BB+ 532840 2L5T% 695,540 3%
BB [EER T 3.54% 483379 209%
BE- 207,183 1.00% 30,980 3.16%
B+ BSL623 315% - 0.00%
[ 8 e 196,430 0.95% - 0.00%%
Total loating rate notes 2323045 11.21% 2116141 2154
Convertible bonds
ooC - 0,00 156,925 .69
Total convertible honds - 0.00%% 159,526 0.6%%
Shares
BB 91,810 0.44% 256,755 1.11%
Total shares 91,810 0.44% 256,755 1.11%

5 IE“'.IT” 100.00% £ 122 492  100.00%

* The Investment Manager reviews and monitors the credit quality of unrated debt investments continuously, As at
Jarigary 31, 2024, the Investment Manager believes that these mvestments are of pood credit quality.

Cash and cash equivalenis which potentially expose the Class Fund to credit risk consist primarily of call balances
and placements with an original maturity of 3 months or less from placement. The cash equivalents are placed with
Mizuho Bank (LUSA) by the Custodian (which has an S&P credit rating of A- (2023: A-)) and thus are not considersed
to pose a significant credit risk. Margin is held with JP Morgan (which has an S&P credit rating of A= (2023: A=)}
through a sub-custody arrangement and is also not considered o pose & significant credit risk.

All transactions are settled/paid for upon delivery using approved brokers. The risk of defauli is considered minimal,
as delivery of securities sold is only made once the broker has received payment. Payment is made on a purchase once:
the securities have been received by the broker. The trade will fail if either party fails to meet its obligation.

The counterparties to the Class Fund's non-exchange traded derivative contracts are major financial institutions.
Management does not consider that credit risk related to open derivative contracts will have a material adverse effect
on the financial condition of the Class Fund,

The Class Fund measures credit risk and expected credit losses using probability of default, exposure at default and
loss piven default. Manapement considers both historical analysis and forward looking information in determining
any expected credit loss, Management considers the probability of default to be close 1o rero as the counterparties.
have a strong capacity (o meet their contractual obligations in the near term. As a result, no loss allowance has been
recognised based on 12-month expected credit losses as any such impairment would be wholly insignificant to the
Class Fund.

In secordance with the Class Fund's policy, the Sub-Investment Manager menitors the Class Fund's eredit position
on a daily basis.
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cial continued

Liguidity risk;
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Class Fund may not be able to generate sufficient cash resources (o settle its
obligations in full as they fall due or can only do 0 on terms that are materially disadvantageous.

The Class Fund may periodically invest in derivative contracts and debt securities that are traded over the counter. As
a result, the Class Fund may not be able to liquidate quickly s investments in these instruments at an amount close
to their fair vahae to meet its liquidity requirements, or be able to respond to specific events such as deterioration in
the creditworthiness of any particular issuer,

As at January 31, 2024 and 2023, all the unrealised gains and losses on forward currency contracts mature within 90
days or less.

Participating Units are redesmed on demand at the Unitholder’s option. However, the Trustes does not foreses that
this contractual maturity disclosed will be representative of the actual cash outflows, as holders of these instruments.
typically retain them for the medium to long term.

As at January 31, 2024 and 2023, all other liabilities of the Class Fund had a contractual maturity of less than one
month. The Investment Manager monitors the Class Fund’s liquidity position on an ongoing basis.

Custody risk:

The Class Fund may invest directly or indirectly, in markets where custodial and‘or settlement systems are not fully
developed. The assets of the Class Fund which are traded in such markets and which have been entrusted to sub-
custodians, in circumstances where the use of such sub-custodians is necessary, may be exposed to certain risks. Such
risks include, but are not limited to, a non-tree delivery versus payment settlement, a physical market, and as a
consequence the circulation of forged securities, poor information in regards to corporate actions, registration process
that impacts the availability of the securities, lack of appropriate legalfiscal infrastructure and lack of
compensation/risk fund with a central depository.

The Class Fund maintaing a custody account with its prime broker and primary custodian {see Note 4}, Although the
Trustee monitors the Custodian, and believes that they are appropriate custodians, there is no gusrantee that the
Custodian, or any other custodian that the Class Fund may use from time to time, will not become inaolvent, While
baoth the 115, Bankruptey Code and the Securities Investor Protection Act of 1970 seek to protect customer property
in the event of a failure, insolvency or liquidation of a broker-dealer, there is no certainty that, in the event of a failure
of & broker-dealer that has custody of Class Fund assets, the Class Fund would not incur losses due to its assets being
unavailable for a pericd of time, ultimately less than full recovery of its assets, or both, Because substantially all of
the Class Fund's assets are custodied with one custodian, such losses could be sipnificant and could materially impair
the ability of the Class Fund to achieve its investment objective.

Euir value disclosures:

In sccordance with IFRS 13, the Class Fund is required to classify fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy
that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following
lewels:

= Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Jevel 1),

«  Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

»  Inputs for the asset or Lability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level
n
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YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2024

B cial ot (continued)

Faic value disch (sontinued)
The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety is determined
on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. For this purpose,
the significance of an input is assessed against the fair value measurement in its entirety. [f a fair value measurement
uses observable inputs that require significant adjustment based on unobservable inputs, that measurement is & level
3 measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires
Judgment, considering factors specific to the asset or liability.

‘The determination of what constitutes ‘observable’ requires significant judgment by the Class Fund. The Class Fund
considers observable data to be that merket data that is readily available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and
verifiable, not propristary, and provided by independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant mariet.
The following table analyses within the fair value hierarchy the Trust’s financial assets and liabilities (by class)
measured at fuir value:

As at Junuary 31, 2024 Levell Level2 Level 3 Tatal
Asscly
Floating rate notes - - 5 2313,45 £ = 5 2,323,049
Ordirary bonds - 18,333,900 - 18,333,900
Shares 91,810 - - 91,810
Unrealized gain on forward

currency contracts = 70,915 - T0.915
Total assets 3 91,810 § 20,727.864 § - 5 20819674
Liahilities
Unrealized loss on foreard

cumreney contracts £ - ] (460,951) - 13 (460,951)
Total Habilitics 5 - § (460.95T) P {360,551)
As at January 31, 2023 Levell Level2 Leveld Tatal
Assety
Convertible bonds 3 = 5 159926 % = £ 159,926
Floating rate notes - 2,116,141 - 2,116,141
Ordinary bonds - 20,589,670 - 20,589,670
Shires 256,755 - - 256,755
Unrealized gain on forward

currency contracts - 1,490,635 - 1,490,639
Total ancts 7 2 S TR ¥ 5 _Zeennn
Linbilities
Unrealized loss on foreand

curTency coniracts £ - & 582,281) - (382281}
Total Habilities g - § Esazgm E - 3 (582,281

Financial instruments that trade in markets that are not considered (o be active but are valued based on quoted market.
prices, dealer quotations or alternative pricing sources supported by observable inputs are classified within level 2.
These inchede most corporate and convertible bonds, certain non-UUS sovercign obligations, mortgage backed
securities and some over-the-counter derivatives, As level 2 investiments inchude positions that are not traded in active
markets and'or are subject to transfer restrictions, valutions may be adjusted to reflect illiquidity and/er non-
transferability, which are generally based on available market information.

-2]-
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YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2024

B cial ot (continued)

Faic value disch (sontinued)
Investments classified within level 3 have significant unobservable inputs, as they trade infrequently or not at all. As
observable prices are not available for these securities, the Class Fund has used valuation techniques to derive the fair
value. At January 31, 2024 and 2023, the Class Fund held no level 3 investments.

TMCmFuﬂmmudewwmmmufﬂﬁmnxmmldhuhllmwlqvmmmﬁmtﬂnmtof
Financial Position to enable users of the financizl statements to evaluste the effect or potential effect of netting
arrangements on its financial position for recognized assets and liabilities. Thess assets and lishilities include certain
financial instruments end derivative instruments that are either subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement,
or similar agreement. As at January 31, 2024 and 2023, the Class Fond had derivative assets and liabilities that are
subject to three master netting arrangements with its derivative counterparties.

The Class Fund and its counterparties have elected to settle all transactions on a gross hasis however, each party has
the option to settle all open contracts on & net basis in the event of default of the cther party, Per the terms of the
master netting agreement, &n event of default imcludes the following:

s failure by a party to make payment when due;

+ failure by a party to perform any obligation required by the agreement {pther than payment) if such failure is not
remedied within 30 days after notice of such failure is given to the party;

& bankrupicy.

The Fund has elected not to offset fair value amounts recognized for cash collateral receivables and payables against
fair value amounts recognized for derivative positions executed with the same counterparty under the same master
netting arrangement.

The following tables present the Class Fund®s financial assets end linbilities subject to offsetting, enforceable master
netting arrangements and similar agreements. The tables are presented by type of financial instrument.

Financial assets subject o offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and similar agreements:

A B C=A-B
Gross amounts of  Gross amounts of  Net amounts of
recognised recognised financial assets
financial aseels finameial presented in the

of financial
-
Description
2024
Forward currency contracts L 70915 % - b 70,915
5 TO915
2023
Forward currency contracts § 1490639 % - $  1.490,639
5 1490639

.
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C=A-B D E=C-D
Met amounts of Related amount Met amount
financial assets not set-off in the statement of
presented in the fimancial position

statement of Dx(i) and Di(ii) IXii} Collateral
financial position Fimancial received
Instruments
b 4,638 5 4,638 5 - % =
66,277 66,277 - .
5 70,915 3 70,915 s - & -

C=A-B D E=C-D
Net amounts of Relsted amounts not set-off in the Met amount
financial assets statement of financial position
presented in the i) and D) i} Collateral

statement of Financial received
financial position Instruments
b T26 £ T S - -
3,612 945 = 2,667
811 811 - -
51 51 - -
1,485,439 443 857 = 1,041,782
5 1,490,639 5 446190 5§ - 1,044,449
A B C=A-B
Gross amounts of  Gross amounts of — Net amounts of
N 3 E ial
financial financial assets liabilities
lizbilities set-off in the presented in the
statement of staternent of
financial position  financial position
£ 460951 5 o b 460951
5 460,951
£ 582281 5 - § 582281

$ 582,281

-23.
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financial statement of financial position
liabilities (i) and Dyii) IXii}) Collateral
presented in the Financial pledged
statement of Instruments
financial position
Counterparty
2024
Counterparty 1 5 6,050 £ 4,638 b - £ 1,412
Counterparty 2 450,359 56,277 - 364,082
Counterparty 3 4,525 - - 4,525
Counterparty 4 17 - - 17
5 460,951 5 70,915 5 = § 390,036
C=A-B D E=C-D
Met amounts of Related amounts not set-ofT in the MWet amount
financial statement of financial position
liabilities D) and D{ii) IXii) Collateral
presented in the Finaneial pledged
statement of Instruments
financial position
Counterparty
2023
Counterparty 1 b 983 b T 8 = 5 257
Counterparty 2 9435 435 - -
Counterparty 3 894 811 - 83
Counterparty 4 122,793 51 - 122,742
Counterparty 5 443,657 443,657 - -
Counterparty 6 13,009 - - 13,009
5 582,281 5 446,190 5 - 5 136091

Amounts in [{i) and D{ii) above relate to amounts subject to set-off that do not qualify for offsetting under (B) above.
This includes (i) amounts which are subject to set-off against the asset (or liability) disclesed in “A° which have not
been offset in the staternent of financial position, and (ii) any financial collateral (including cash collateral), both
received and pledged.

Investments are carried at fair value. The carrying values of all cther financial assels and liabilities are carried at
amortised cost; their carmying values are a reasonable approximation of fair value.

Cash and cash equivalents inchade cash in hand, deposits held with banks and other short-term mvestments in an sctive
market Cach and cash equivalents have been determined using level 1 inputs. Margin inchides restricted cash balances.
held as margin or collateral for foreipn currency forwards trading. Margin has been determined using level 1 inputs,

T
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Receivable from investments sold and other receivables include the contractual amounts for setilement of trades and
other obligations due to the Class Fund. Payable for investments purchased and sccruals represent the contractual
amounts and obligations due by the Class Fund for settlement of trades and expenses. These receivables and pavables
have been determined using level 2 inputs.

The puttable value of Participating Units is caleulated based on the net difference between total assets and all other
liabilities of the Class Fund in accordance with the Class Fund’s governing documents, These Participating Units are
not traded on an active market A demand feature is attached to these units, as they are redeemahble at the Unitholders”
option and can be put back to the Class Fund at any dealing date for cash equal to a proportionate share of the Class
Fund's net asset value attributeble to the Unit Class (Notes 2 and 7). The fair value is based on the amount payable on
demand, discounted from the first date that the emount could be required to be paid. The impect of discounting in this
instance is not material. As such, Level 2 is deemed to be the most appropriate categorisation for net assets attributable
to Unitholders.

10._Commitments

In the normal course of business, the trustee and'or Manager (“Management™) on behalf of the Trust enters into
contracts that contain a variety of representations and warranties and which provide general indemnifications,
Managerment's maximurm exposure under these arrangements is unknown, as this would invalve future claims that

may be made against Management that have not yet occurred, however, based on experience, Management expects.
the risk of loss to be remate.

11, Subsequent events

From February 1, 2024 through July 5, 2024, the Class Fund received no subscriptions, paid redemptions amounting
o $453,345 to Class USD Unithelders and AL 958,526 to Class AUD Unitholders and dividends amounting to
$T1,781 to Class USD Unitholders and AUD 642460 to Class AUD Unitholders.

Subsequent events were evaluated up until July 5, 2024, which was the date that the financial statements were:
available to be ssued.

-25.
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FAIR % OF NET

QUANTITY SECLURITY DES CRIFTION COST VALLE ASSETS
FLOATING-RATE NOTES
200,000 BARCLAYS PLC BDS 9.625% 23-FERFP 5 200000 § 207183 0.98%
200,000 BAYER AGBDS FTV23.25/0/83 213,089 426 1.06%
240,000 CEMEX SAB DE CV BDS 2.125% I3-FERP 240,000 235,187 1.21%
100,000 COMMERZBANE AGBDS FTV 23-4/10/33 108,555 116,070 055
200,000 CPIPROPERTY GROUP SA BDS 3,75% 21-PERP 177,397 B7,443 042%
200,000 ELECTRICITE DE FRANCE 5A BDS 2.875% 20-PERP 180,540 200,703 097%
200,000 ELECTRICITE DE FRANCE 5A BDS 3.37%% 20-FERFP 174,701 193,733 0.92%
200,000 SOCIETE GENFRALE SA BDS 1096 23-FERP 200,000 213,841 1.02%
200,000 TRIVIUM PACKAGNGFIN. BY BDS STP 19-15/8/27 190,000 196,431 0.93%
400,000 UBS GROUP AGBDS 9.25% 13-FERF 400,000 432,688 2.06%
200,000 VEOLIA ENVIRONMEMENT SA BDS 2.5% 2-PERP 184,576 195,344 0.93%
TOTAL FLOATING-RATENOTES 2269158 2313049 11.4%
ORDINARY BONDS
TLOGH ADAPTHEALTH LLC BIS 5.125% 21-1/3/30 62,655 55,822 0.27%
100,000 ADLER PELZER HOLDING (BH BDS 9.5% 23-14727 100,506 110,508 0.53%
11,000 AHEAD DB HOLDINGS LLC BDS 6.625% 21- 17528 9625 9,681 005
10,000 ALLIED UNIVERSAL HOLDOO LLCYALLIED UNITY BIXS 4.625% 2-1/6728 168,500 180,918 0865
100,000 ALTICE FRANCE SA/FR BDS 11.5% 24-1/2727 109,453 106,887 0.51%
64,000 AMERICAN AIRLINES INC BDS £.5% 13-15/5/29 64,000 57,856 032%
9,600 AMERICAN AIRLINES INC/AADVANTAGE LOYALT BDS 5,75% 21-3y4/20 201,573 206,122 0.98%
175,000 AMN HEALTHCARE INC BDS 4% N-154719 153,449 158215 0.75%
155,000 ARCHES BUYER INC BDS 4.25% 20- 16728 129,701 139,636 0.66%
99000 ARCHES BUYER INC BIXS 6.125% 20-1/12/28 5,135 85,007 0.41%
00,000 ARD FIMANCE SA BDS 5% 19-3006/27 224859 106,869 0.51%
40,000 ARETEC ESCROW [SSUER 2 INC BDS 107 23-15/830 40,000 43,148 0.21%
300,000 BANUAY ENTERTATNMENT SASLU BDS 8.125% 23-1/529 300,000 JEn 1.48%
00,000 BELLIS ACQUISITION OO PLC HDS 3.25% 211672126 333,084 362,466 1.71%
91,000 BLUE OW L CREDIT INCOME CORP BDS 7.75% 23-16'%27 91,118 54,351 0.45%
100,000 BOMBA RDIER INC BDS 8.75% 23-15/11/30 100,578 106,575 0.51%
6000 BROADSTREET PARTNERS INC BDIS 5.875% 21-15'4/29 200,738 213,757 1.02%
200,000 BURFORD CAPITAL GLOBAL FIN. LLC BDS 6.25% 21-15/4/28 181,954 193,423 0.92%
T4.000 CAESARS ENTERTAINMENT [MNC BDS 6.5% 24-157232 74,000 T4, 546 036%
371,000 CARGD AIRCRAFT MANACGEMENT INC BDS 4,75% H-1/22% 353,214 339,584 1.61%
TLOOD CARNIVAL CORP BDS 6% 21-1/5/29 62353 68,916 0.33%
100,000 CASTLE UK FINCO PLC BDS T 22-15/ 529 113,137 114371 0.54%
100,000 CHEPLA PHA BM ARSNEIMITTEL GMEH BDS 7.5% 23-15/5730 107435 114,654 0.55%
50,000 CHOBANI LLC/ CHOBANI FIN, CORP INC BDS 4.625% X-15/11/28 45,576 46,614 0.22%
57,000 CHOBANI LLC/ CHOBANI FIN. CORP INC BDS 7.625% 24-1F7/29 57,000 57,760 027
71,000 CIENA CORP RDS 4% 2231/ 1730 65,739 64,791 0.31%
94,000 CTVITAS RESOURCES INC BDS 8375% 23-17728 4,481 9,056 04T
134,000 COMPASS MINERALS INTL INC BDS 6.75% 1511227 135,807 132,191 0.63%
185,000 CONDOR MERGER SUR INC BDS 7.375% 2-1572130 163,973 167,713 0800
52,000 DIRECTVFIN, LLC BDS BE75% 24-1/2730 52,000 53,153 0.25%
236,000 DT MIDSTREAM INC BDS 4.125% 21-15/6/29 220,170 216428 1.03%
200,000 DUFRY ONME BY BDS 3.375% 21-15/4/28 193,176 208,347 0.95%%
100,000 EGGLOBAL FIN, PLCBDS 11% 23-3001 1028 112,076 115325 0.55%
168,000 ENTEGRIS ESCROW CORP BDS 5.95% 2-15/6/30 157,863 166,078 0.7

-2 -
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QUANTITY SECURITY DESCRIFTION COST VALUE ASSETS
DORDINARY BONDS (CONTINLUED)

SR000 ENTHGRIS INC BDS 3.625% 21-1/529 1 51921 § 50367 0.25%
200,000 FIBER BIDCO SPA BDS 119 2225 10027 191,545 piplin] 1L13%
ZER,000 FMGRESOURCES ALUGUST 2006 FTY LTD BDS 6.125% 22-15/4/732 278,654 285213 1L36%
166,000 FOOT LOCKEER MNC BDS 4% 21-1/1002% 152,028 140,371 06T

66,000 FORD MOTOR OO BDS 4,75% 13-15/1/43 0,364 54,301 026%%
104,000 FORD MOTOR OO0 BDS 6.1% 2-19832 104,000 104,056 0.45%
108,000 FOBRTRESS TRANSPORTATION AND INFRASTRUCTUR BDS 5.5% 21-1/5/28 103,580 104,427 0.50%%
H0000 FTAIINFRA ESCROW HOLINNGS LLC BDS 10.5% 22-1/6/27 190,798 209,689 1,00
291,000 FULL HOUSE RESORTS INC BDS 8.25% 21-15/2728 05,768 276,047 1L31%

B6,000 GARDA WORLD SECURITY CORF BDS 6% 21-1/429 TLELD T5.555 0.36%

6000 GARDA WORLD SECURITY CORP BDS 7.78% 23-15/2128 55,681 57,010 0:27%
7,000 GOAM FIN. LTD BDS §% 23-1 /6728 37,069 247016 L17%
83,000 HADRIAN MERGER SUB INC BDS 8.5% 18-1/5726 261,864 280,467 133%
177000 HEARTLAND DENTAL LLCf HEARTLAND DENTAL BDS 10.5% 23-30/4/28 177,000 185,543 0.85%

86,000 HILTON GRAND VACATIONS BORROWER ESCROW BDS 6.625% M-1571732 86,000 #a,336 hdl%
200,000 HOUSE OF HR GROUP BV BDS 9% 22-3/11/29 197,506 e 1L0E%
126000 HOWARD MIDSTREAM ENERGY PARTNERS LLC BDS 6.75% 21-15/1/727 125,299 125,563 0.6

70,000 HUB INTL LTD BDS 5.625% 21-1/1372% 60,375 66,134 031%
57000 HUDBAY MINERALS INC BDE 6. 125% 20-1/472% 350,995 351,872 L6T%
0,000 TLIAD SA BDS 5375% 23-15029 215,762 12548 1.06%
0,000 INEQOS QUATTRO FIN. 2 FLC BDS & 5% 13-15372 116,574 230,676 1.1
105,000 [RON MOUNTAIN INC BDS 4,59 20-15/2/31 93,929 365 045
216000 [RON MOUNTAIN INC BDS 5.25% 20-15730 188,564 204,062 0.97%
104,000 TB POMNDEXTER & OO TNC BDS & 75% 23-15/12/31 104,713 10,4655 0:51%

31,000 JEFFERSON CAPITAL HOLDINGS LLC BDS 9.59% 2415229 31,000 31,310 015%
199,000 KOHLS CORP BDS 3.375% 21-1/5/31 145,351 159417 0.TE%

o000 LABL INC BDS S875% 21-1/11728 74,506 0835 0.34%
127,000 LABL INC BDS 8.25% 21-1/11/29 120,564 104,061 045%
100,000  LABORATOIRE EIMER. SELA S BDS 534 21-1/2129 B3804 o461 044%
186,000 LGI HOMES INC BIDS 4% 21-157/29 159,478 159,365 0.76%
183,000 LIFE TDME NG BDS B3 21-150426 182,369 185,200 088
186,000 LIFEPCHNT HEALTH INC BDS 9.875% 13-15/8/30 186,154 152,156 0.91%
0,000 LORCA TELECOM BONDOO SA BDS 4% 20-18/%27 21,605 211,770 1L.01%
130,000 LOTTOMATICA SPA BDS 9.75% 22-30/9727 129,942 152,385 0.72%
100,000 LOTTOMATICA SPA/ROMA EDS 7.125% 23-1/6/28 108,205 115,126 0.55%
HMT 000 LSFY ATLANTIS HOLDINGS LLC f VICTRA FIN BDS 7.75% 21-15/426 134,587 138379 113%
250000 MACYS RETAIL HOLDINGS LLC BDS 5.875% 21-1/4129 732584 251,464 1.20%

46,000 METIS MERGER SUB LLC BDS 6.5% 21-15/519 43,125 42,733 0.20%

98000 MIDWEST GAMING BORROWER LLCf MIDWEST GRDS 4.875% 21-1/519 Bo486 50, B 043%
114,000 MINERAL RESOURCES LTD BDS 9.25% B-1/1028 115,235 120,202 0.5M%
309000 MOZART DEBT MERGER SUB INC BDS 5.25% 21-1/ 10729 0415 288212 137%

B4.000 MAVIENT CORP BIDS 5.625% 03-1/2133 61617 66,346 0.32%
117,000 MAVIENT CORP BDS 9.375% 13-287/30 117211 122105 0.58%
143,000 NENTERA ENIFRGY OPERA TING PARTNERS LI BDS 7.29% 13-15/129 145,300 147432 0 7P
150,000 NORTONLIFELOCK INC BIDS 6,75% 22-30/%27 148,450 152,383 0.T2%
110,000 CNEMATN FIN. CORP BDS 1.5% 21-181727 W72 100,574 0.48%
117,000 ONEMATN FIN. CORP BDS 4% 20-15430 BE 1R 69,185 04T

339,000 ORGANON FIN, 1 110 ADS 5.125% 213004731 280,692 200,537 1.38%

-27-
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% OF NET
_QUANTITY SECURITY DESCRIFTION COST FAIR VALIE _ ASSETS
ORDINARY BONDS (CONTINUED)
TLO0 COWENS & MINOR INC BDS 4.5% 21-307429 61355 § 62,396 030%
BRO00 OWL ROCK CORE INOOME CORP BDS 7.55% 2313628 57431 92,320 0.44%
B4000 PENN NTL GAMINGINC BDS 4.125% 21-1/129 69,664 71874 0.34%
207000 PENNYMAC FIN. SERVICES INC BDS 5.78% 21- 15931 251,192 74,085 1.30%
40,000 FICARD MIDCO INC BDS 6.5% 2-300329 438 31357 0.1B%
100,000 PINNACLE RIDCO PLC BDS 10% 23-1 1110028 121,350 134,038 0.64%
100,000 PINMACLE BIDCO FLC BDS 8.29% 111710728 108,115 113,785 0:54%
177,000 QUICKEN LOANS LLC/ UICKEN LOANS O0-S BDS 3 875% 20-1/3/31 16,6 156,025 0.74%
168,000 RAND PARENT [LC BDS £.5% 23152730 167,815 166,428 0.79%%
132,000 RINGCENTRAL INC BDS 8.5% - 15830 132,000 136,208 0.65%
100,000 SCHAFFFLER AGEDS 4.7585% M-144729 109,089 110,19 0.52%
136,000 SEAGATE HDD CAYMAN BDS 4,125% H-151/31 114,530 120,529 05T
8510 SEAGATEHDD CAYMAN BDS 9.625% 22111232 319,319 7648 1.46%
199,000 SERVICE CORF INTERNATIONALUS BDS 3 375% 20- 15830 150,672 173,679 083%
A0 STANDARD INDUSTRIES INCMI BDS 3.375% 2015/1/31 3TN 37,556 1.51%
110,000 STATION CASINOS LLC BDS 4.629% 21171231 91,871 98,725 047
RO SUNOOD LE/ SUNOCO FIN. OORE BDS 4.5% 22-304050 68,105 59,311 123%
127,000 TALLGRASS FENERGY PARTNERS 1P/ TALLCRASS BDS 5.5% 17157128 124,500 172,362 0.58%
128,000 TALLGRASS ENERGY PARTNERS LP/ TALLGRASS BN BDS 6% 20-1i3727 126,195 125,870 060
146,000 TALLGRASS ENERGY PARTMERS LP / TALLGRASS BN BDS 6% 21-1i31 17,426 134,457 064%
S0,000 TELECOM FTALLA FIN. SA BDS 7.75% 03-24/1/33 59,766 63433 0L30%
100,000 TELECOM ITALIA SPAMILANG BDS 7.879% 2331728 111,206 119,629 0.57%
88,000 TEMET HEALTHCARE CORP BDS 6.125% 2-1 5630 £8,000 BR,065 042%
210,000 TEREAFORM POWER OPERATINGLLC BDS 4.75% 19-15/1/30 210,760 194,078 0.92%
00000 TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL FINANCENETHFERLAN RDS 1.629% 16-15/10028 251,605 ZB0,4%7 1.33%
200,000 TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL FINANCE NETHERLANDS BI¥S 4. 379% 21-9/5/30 217,550 4,605 097%
3,000 THOR INDUSTRIES INC BDS 4% 21-15710729 252241 269,593 1.28%
238,000 TRANSDIGM INC RDS 48759 21-1/5/20 BEA0 BT 1.06%
53,000 TRINITY INDUSTRIES INC BDS 7.75% 23- 15728 53,000 55072 026%
110,000 ULTIMATE SOFTWARE GROUF INC BDS 6.879%¢ 24-172731 110611 111,289 0535
96,000 UNIVISION COMM., NG BDS 4,5% 21-1/5/29 51628 85,339 041%
RO000 UNTVISION OOMM. TNC BDS 7.379% 22-3006/30 7,645 #7481 042%
121,000 UMIVISION COMM. INC BDS 8% 23-15/8/28 121,312 133,198 0595
1000 USHINCNY BDS 7.5% B-151/32 2,000 n3m 0.11%
221,000 VENTURE (OBAL LNG INC BDS B.129% 23-1/6728 e 4,758 1.07%%
94,000 VERDE FURCHA SER LLC BDS 10.9% 23-30011730 94,000 97,186 0.46%
100,000 VERISURE HOLDING AR BDS 7.125% 117128 108,650 114,193 0.54%
210,000 VERTSITRE HOLDING A B EDS $.29% 22-15/10°27 ek 45458 117
1R7.000 WATOD COS LLC/ WATCD FIN. CORP BDS £.5% 30-15/6/27 124,230 186,264 0.85%
100,000 WEPA HYEARNFPRODUKTE GMBH BDS 5.625% M-15/1731 1, 72 109,303 0.52%
107,000 WESTERM DIITAL CORD BDS 3,1% 2110232 bRl 85,046 040
42,000 WYNNMACAU LTD BDS 5,625% 1-26/0178 211,749 15476 107
TOTAL ORDINARY BONDS 17,953,085 18,333,000 AT
SHARES
1,813 CHART INDUSTRIES INC 0,698 91,810 0.44%
TOTAL SHARES 508 91810 044%
TOTAL VALUE OF INVES TMENTS 12941 20,748,759 GEL65%
OTHER ASSETS, NET OF LIABILITIES 193,339 1.35%
NET ASSETS 5 2 1000054
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2024

20,302,566 3,182,224,195
388,000 60,815,120
3,503,445 549,129,969
2,876,707 450,895,055
1,046,776 164,071,670
18,776,992 1,952,994,938

22,106

266,121

60,757

631,813
158.48 24,840
10.81 1,694
17.23 2,701
29.72 3,001
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2023 2022 12 31
2023 2022
6,786,842 1,063,770 6,018,277 943,305
309,878 48,570 419,477 65,749
59,294 9,294 11,049 1,732
62,257 9,758 84,938 13,313
7,218,271 1,131,392 6,533,741 1,024,099
60,251 9,444 94,706 14,844
7,278,522 1,140,836 6,628,447 1,038,943
527,595 82,695 462,677 72,520
282,275 44,244 208,201 32,633
809,870 126,939 670,878 105,153
2,000,000 313,480 2,000,000 313,480
4,468,652 700,417 3,957,569 620,309
6,468,652 1,013,897 5,957,569 933,789
7,278,522 1,140,836 6,628,447 1,038,943
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2022 12 31
2023 2022

4,821,000 755,644 4,775,820 748,562
232,471 36,438 212,503 33,308
139,646 21,888 22,385 3,509
34,933 5,475 38,400 6,019
5,228,050 819,445 5,026,723 791,397
4,821,000 755,644 5,049,108 748,562
3,020,111 473,372 2,663,914 417,542
1,082,186 169,622 1,008,720 158,107
346,322 54,283 361,491 56,660
37,748 5,917 44,638 6,997
5,600 878 549 86
4,491,967 704,071 4,079,312 639,391
736,083 115,374 969,796 152,006
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2023 2022 12 31
2,000,000 313,480 2,987,773 468,304 4,987,773 781,784
969,796 152,006 969,796 152,006
2,000,000 313,480 3,957,569 620,309 5,957,569 933,789
736,083 115,374 736,083 115,374
(225,000) (35,267) (225,000) (35,267)
2,000,000 313,480 4,468,652 700,417 6,468,652 1,013,897
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2023 2022 12 31
2023 2022

736,083 115,374 969,796 152,006
37,748 5,917 44,638 6,997
773,831 121,290 1,014,434 159,002
416,812 65,331
109,599 17,179 179,599 28,150
(48,245) (7.562) 1,238 194
22,681 3,555 (28,145) (4,411)
(3,183,319) (498,953)
64,918 10,175 28,163 4,414
74,074 11,610 (155,844) (24,427)
996,858 156,248 (1,727,062) (270,700)
(3,293) (516) (2,378) (373)

(225,000) (35,267)
768,565 120,465 (1,729,440) (271,072)
6,018,277 943,305 7,747,717 1,214,377
6,786,842 1,063,770 6,018,277 943,305
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12

2023 2022
1,186,842 1,918,277
5,600,000 4,100,000
6,786,842 6,018,277
2023 2022 12 31
2023 2022
192,939 325,292
116,940 94,185
309,879 419,477
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2023 2022
25,400 5,057
20,200 53,240
17,000 21,513
62,600 79,810
2023 2022
(5,600) (549)
5,600 549
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12

12

12

31

31
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2021
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2023

2022

2023

12

12

12

12

12
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31

31

31

31

EDINETOOOO
0000000 0(E25766)
0O00000000000000000

791,015 372,854 1,163,869

2,378 2,378

793,393 372,854 1,166,247

(69,635) (69, 635)

3,293 3,293

796,686 303,219 1,099,905

708,910 317,993 1,026,903

28,252 16,386 44,638

737,162 334,379 1,071,541

(69,635) (69, 635)

26,861 10,887 37,748

764,023 275,631 1,039,654

56,231 38,475 94,706

32,663 27,588 60,251

2023 2022
10,000,000

2,000,000 2022 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000

2023 12 31

225,000
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Tilly Nominees Limited Coultry Directors Ltd
Tilly Nominees Limited Tilly Directors Limited Tilly
Secretaries Limited Nominee
(Trust) Companies

2023 2022
Tilly Nominees Limited 100 100
Coultry Directors Ltd 100 100
Tilly Directors Limited 100 100
Tilly Secretaries Limited 100 100
2023 12 31 975,610 2022 975,610
2023 2022
333,615 295,172
245,971 229,912
223,549 222,080
178,562 159,599
100,489 101,957
1,082,186 1,008,720
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15,988

15,893

106,350
25,000

346,322

2011 31

2022 144,360

1447207

4,936

22,727

238,600
30,961

361,491

2023 12 31
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2023 12 31 57.16 2022 53.97
2022 2023 2022
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2023
2022 12 31
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2023
0.03 3.5 6,786,842 6,786,842
309,878 309,878
59,294 59,294
7,156,013 7,156,013
527,595 527,595
527,595 527,595
6,628,418 6,628,418
2022
0.03 1.4 1,918,277 4,100,000 6,018,277
419,477 419,477
11,049 11,049
2,348,803 4,100,000 6,448,803
462,677 462,677
462,677 462,677
1,886,126 4,100,000 5,986,126
2023 12 31 30 2022
3,561 2022 5,755
30 2022 30
30 5,755
2023 12 31 30 2022
16,800 2022
30 2022 30
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30 16,800 2022 12,300

2023 2022 12 31 30
2022
2023 2022 12 31
12
2022
13
15
2022 12 31 2023 2023 10
400,000 500,000
2023 2022 12 31
14
2024 11
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QUEENSGATE

(formerly Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Ltd.)
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

December 31, 2023 and 2022

{expressed in United States dollars)

2023 2022
ASSETS
CURREMNT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 3) $ 6,786,842 § 6018277
Client accounts receivable (Note 4) 309,878 410,477
Other receivables 59,294 11,049
Prepaid expenses 62257 84 938
7,218,271 6,533,741
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Fixed assets (Mote 5) 60,251 94 706
§ 7278522 5 6628447
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER ITY
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (Note 9) 5 527,585 $ 462 677
Fees received in advance 282 275 208,201
809,870 670,878
SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
Share capital (Note 8) 2,000,000 2,000,000
Retained earnings 4,468 652 3,057 568
5,468,652 5 957,569
§ 7278522 § 6E28447

See notes fo consolidated fnancial statements
Page 3
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Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022
{expressed in United States dollars)
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INCOME
Directorship, trustee and management fees (Note 9)
Miscellanegus
Interest income

Rental income

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and benefits (Note 10)
Administration (Note 8,9)
Rent expense (Note 5)
Depreciation (Note 5)
Expected credit loss (Note 4)

NET INCOME AND COMPREHEMSIVE INCOME

—_— 2023 2022
4,821,000 4,775,820
232.4T1 212,503
139,646 22,385
34,933 38,400
5,228,050 5,048 108
3,020,111 2663914
1,082,188 1,008,720
348,322 361,491
37,748 44 638

5,600 549
4,491,967 4,079,312

$ 736,083 $ 959,796

See notes fo consolidated fnancial statements
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

(expressed in United States dollars)

Balance at December 31, 2021
Met income and comprehensive income

Dividends (Mote 8)
Balance at December 31, 2022

Met income and comprehensive income
Dividends (Nobe 6)

Balance at Decamber 31, 2023

See notes fo consolidated fnancial statements

Total

Retained shareholder's

Share capital earnings equity
2,000,000 2987773 § 4887773

- 969,796 868,796

2,000,000 3,957,569 5,857,569

- 736,083 736,083

= {225,000 (225,000

2,000,000 4468652 % 6468652
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CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN):

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Met income and comprehensive income
Adjustments for items not affecting cash;
Depraciation

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Due from clients
Client accounts receivable
Other receivables
Prepaid expensas
Depositors’ accounts
Accounts payable and accrued expensas
Fees recetved in advance

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of fixed assets

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR

2023 2022
736,083 969,796
37,748 44,638
773,831 1,014,434
. 416,812
109,599 179,500
(48,245) 1,238
22,681 (28,145)

- {3,183,319)

64,918 28,163
74,074 {155,844)
996,858 {1,727,062)
(3,283) (2,378)
(225,000) -
768,565 {1,729,440)
6,018,277 7,747,717
6,786,842 8,018,277

See notes fo consolidated fnancial statements
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QUEENSGATE
(formerly Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Ltd.)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022
{expressed in United States dollars)

1.

THE COMPANY AND ITS PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

CQueensgate (the “Company”) was incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands on June 15,
1990 as Queensgale Bank & Trust Company Lid. ("QBTC") and is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Queensgate Group Ltd, (the “Parent”), a company also incorporated in the Cayman islands.

On January 2, 2000, QBTC undertook a restructunng in order to saparate the banking activities lrom
the trust activilies, Subsequently, on January 1, 2014, the Company underlook a merger o re-combine
the bank and the trust activities, On January 2, 2014, the Campany changed its name (o Queansgate
Bank and Trust Company Lid. The newly named company conlinued as the entilty lormerly named
Cueensgate Trust Company Lid. and was licensed with a Class B Banking bcense, a Trust Company
ficense and Mutual Fund Administration license with the Cayman Islands Monetary Autharity ("CIMAT),

On Qclober 5, 2023 CIMA accepted the surrender of the Class B Banking license and granted approval
lor the change of name o Queensgate. During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Company did
nol have any deposis with clients or overdrafls,

The Company has received an underaking from the Cayman Iskands Government exemgpting it from all

local income, profits and capital gains taxes until Febroany 1, 2031, No such taxes exist in the Cayman
Islands at the present time,

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The consolidated financial slatements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards ("IFRS") and reflect the following material accounting policy information:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements ncorporate the financial statements of the Company and enliies
contralled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

= has power over he investee;
= s exposed, or has nghts, to varable retumns from B3 invelvement with the investee; and
= has the ability 1o use its power to affecl its relums,

The Company reassesses whether or not it contrels an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
thal there are changes 1o one or more of the three elements of control listed abowve,

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company oblaing control over the subsidiary and ceases
when the Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acqulred or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income from the date the Company gains contral unlil the date when the Company ceases to control
the subsidiary.

All significant intercompany ransactions and balances have been eliminated on consoldation. Refer lo
Mote 9 for other disclosures relating to the subsidianies.
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QUEENSGATE
(formerly Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Ltd.)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022
{expressed in United States dollars) {continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION {conlinued)
Use of estimates

Financial statemenls prepared in sccordance with IFRS require management o make estimates and
assumptions that affect the repored amounts of assels and liatalities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabalities al the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expense
during the reporing period, Aclual resulls could differ from those estimates.,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and shord-lerm deposits with an ariginal maturily of three
months ar less.,

Client accounts receivable and allowance for doubtful accounts

Client accounts receivable includes fee income receivables generated from the Company's
directorship, trustee and management fees and receivables for disbursements made on behalfl of
dlients. Fee income receivaldes are stated net of a provision for expected credil losses. Receivables
for disbursements made on behalf of clients do not have a related provision for expecled credit losses
as these balances typically represent unbilled disbursements thal the Company expects lo recover
once billed.

The provision for expeclted credit losses s established by charges o income based on the expecled
credil losses in receivable balances, Thesa ane based upon managemeant's knowbedge of the current
condition of the Company’s clients.

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are staled al cosl less accumulaled depreciation. Depreciation is calculated using the
Slraight-lil'le mathod and is based on the eslimaled ves as follows:

Furmiture and compuler equipmenl 3 1o 15 years
Motor wehicles & years

Al the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carmying amount of its fixed assels to
delermine whether there is any indicalion thal those assels have sullered an impairment loss, Il any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is eslimated in order o determine the extent
af the impaimment loss (if any). For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company has
not ientified any assets for which an impairment loss was reconded,

Fees received in advance
The Company collects payment from clienis as a part of the annual billing cycle for annual fees which

are subsequently remitied to various regulatory or governmental bodies. These fees are nol recognized
as revenue for the Company.
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QUEENSGATE

(formerly Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Ltd.)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022
{expressed in United States dollars) {continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION {conlinued)

Intarast income and expense

Interest incoma and axpense are recognised in the consolidated statements of comprehansive income
lor all interest bearing instrumentis on an accrual basis using the effective yield method,

Revenue recognition
The Caompany recognises revenue from the lollowing sources;
+ direclorship, rustee, managemen! and olher similar services provided to clients;

«  mascellaneous services provided o clients and disbursement charmges lor services provided 1o
chents in connection wilh the direclorship, trustee and management services being provided;
and

= rental income for use of its office space.

Revenue & measured based on the consideration that the Company is contracted to receive from its
clients and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Company recognises revenues
on an accreal basis as performance obligations are satisfied.

The primary source of revenue for the Company is lrom the provision of directorship, truslee,
managemenl, and registered office services to ils clienls. For these services, the Company recognises
revenues over the contracted period of service which coincides with a calendar yaar, Where mulliple
services are provided (o a single chent, the revenues generaled from each lype of senvice are
recognisad separately,

Miscellaneous income includes disbursement fees charged to clients for the Company’s overhead and
lees charged lo clienls for miscellaneows services such as COPY Services far meelings of counar cosls,
Disbursement fee revenue is chamed based on a percentage of the conlracted revenue for directorship,
trustee, management and other similar services and is recognised in the same pattemn as the revenues
Ior those services, Feas charged lo clients for miscellaneous services are recognised in revenue al the
paint in time in which they are provided,

The Company records renfal income from leasing out their office space to third parlies, The rental
income is eamed and recognised on a moenth to month basis and is not based on a contracl

Operating expenses and accounts payable
Operating expenses and the associaled accounis payable, with the exception of depreciation and

expected credit loss, are recognised in the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income on an
accrual basis.

154/207



EDINETOOOO
0000000 0(E25766)
0O00000000000000000

QUEENSGATE
(formerly Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Ltd.)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022
{expressed in United States dollars) {continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION {conlinued)

Foreign eurrency transiation

The Company's presentation currancy (s the United States doliar, Assets and liabilities denominated or
accounted for in curencies other than United Slates dollars have been franslated into Uniled Slates
dollars at the applicable exchange rates ruling al the statement of financial position date, Foreign curmency
fransactions and income and expense lems have been ranslated at the exchange rates existing al the
lime of the ransaclion, Gaing and losses arising rom lranslation are included in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income,

Aszets under administration

Securnities, cash and other assels held on behalf of clients in a trust, agency or fiduciary capacity are not
included in these consolidated financial stalements as such assels are not the property of the Company.

Finanaial instruments

Financial assets and financial Babilities are recognised in the Company's statement of financial position
when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument, Financial assels
and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at amonised cost
of subsequently measured al fair value depending on their cash flow charactenstics, Due o the short
term nature of the financial assels and kabilities held by the Company, camying value approximatos fair
value.

Financial assets are derecognised when the conlractual nights 1o the cash flows from the assel expire,
of it transfers the financial assel and substantially all of the fsks and rewards of ownership of the assal
to- anodher enlily. Financial liabilities are derecognised when the Company's abligations are discharged,
cancalled, of they expira,

With IFRS 9, the principle applied for the impairment of accounts receivable is based on expected credil
Insses, Mo provision lor expected credit losses was recorded for the year ended December 31, 2023
and 2022,

Fidueiary activities

The Company, in ils lduciary capacity, may be a pary lo litigation and claims in the normal course of
business. In the opinion of the Directors, which is based on the advice from the Company's lawyers, no
provisions are required at December 31, 2023 and 2022,

Leazas

Under IFRS 16 Leases, a lessee recognizes assels and liabilities for all lease amangemenis unless the
tem i 12 months or less or the underying asset has a low value. Due to the shot term nature of the one
lease contract (Note 9) exdsting as at and during the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the

Company has recorded the month fo month lease costs as rent expense on the consolidated stalements
of comprehensive income.
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QUEENSGATE
(formerly Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Ltd.)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022
{expressed in United States dollars) {continued)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION {conlinued)

New and revised IFRS standards in issue but not yet effective

The Company has reviewad tha IFRS standards that have been issued bul are nol yel effective and
has concluded that they will nol have a matenal impact on the financial statements in fulure perocds.

New and amended IFRS standards that are effective for the current year

The Company has reviewed the IFRE standards thal are effective for the current year and has
concluded that these standards will nol have a material impact on the financial stalements upon
adoplion, with the exception of the following:

«  The Company has adopled the amendments to |AS 1 Freserfation of Financial Statements in
the current year, The amendments replace all inslances of the term “significant accounting
policies” with “material accounting policy information™. Accounting palicy information is material
if. when considered logether with other information included in the entity's financial statements,
it can reasonably be expected 1o influence decisions thal the primary users of the linancial
statements make on the basis of those inancial statemenis,

Critical accounting judgement and key source of estimation unceriainty

The Company makes eslimates and assumplions thal affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities.
Estimales are conlinually evaluated and based on historical experience and other faclors induding
expectations of fulure events that are believed lo be reasonable under the circumslances. The key areas
of judgement or esfimation are with regard to the expected useful economic lives of fixed assels as well
as the recoverability of client accounts receivable from clients and due from clients. The expected useful
economic lives of fixed assets are based on prior expenence of similar assets. Client accounts receivable
and due from clients are measured as eflher a 12 monih or lifeime ECL based on credit risk
considerations.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2023 2022

Call deposits § 1,186,842 $ 1918277
Short-term fixed deposits 5,600,000 4,100,000
$ 6,786,842 $ 6018277

Shont-term fixed deposits as at December 31, 2023 and 2022 mature within three months fromithe original
issued date.
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QUEENSGATE
(formerly Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Ltd.)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022
{expressed in United States dollars) {continued)

4. CLIENT ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Amounts receivable in respect of fee Income eamed by the Company or disbursements made on behalf
of clients are compnsed as follows:

2023 2022

Fea income receivables S 192,938 k3 325,202
Receivables for disbursements made on behalf of clients 116,340 94,185
Less: provision for expected credit losses = -
5 309,878 3 419,477

Fee income receivables include amounts that are past due at the end of the repodting period for which
the Company has not recognised a provision for expected credil losses as there has nol been a
significant change in credil guality and amounts are still considered recoverable. In detemmining the
recoverabilily of the fee income recelvables, lhe Company considers any change in the credit quality
of the receivables from the date the credil was initially granted up to the end of the reporting perod.

Age of fee income receivables that are past due but not impained:

2023 2022
91 to 180 days $ 25,400 5 5,057
181 to 360 days 20,200 53,240
Ower 360 days 17,000 21,513
Total - past due but not impaired ] 62 600 § 78,810
Movermnents in the provision for expected credi losses were as follows:

2023 2022
Balance at beginning of year 5 - -] -
Impairment losses reversed - -
Amaunts written off during the year as uncollectible (5,800) (549)
Increase in provision 5,600 549
Balance at end of year s - g -

To reduce exposure to credit risk, the Company reviews the credil qualily of its customers and defines.
credit limits as part of its onboarding process. Credit quality and limits of the receivables portfolio are
reviewed on an ongoing basis throughoul the year.
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QUEENSGATE
(formerly Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Ltd.)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022
{expressed in United States dollars) {continued)

5. FIXED ASSETS

B,

Furniture and
computer
equipment Motor vehicles Total
Cost
Balance at December 31, 2021 ] 7E1,015 3 3r2e54 5 1,163,869
Additions 2378 = 2,378
Balance at December 31, 2022 793,383 372,854 1,166,247
Disposals - (69,635) 168,635)
Additions 3,293 = 3,293
Balance at December 31, 2023 796,586 303,219 1,099,905
Balance at December 31, 2021 708,910 317,983 1,026,803
Depreciation expense 28,252 16,386 44 638
Balance at December 31, 2022 737162 334 379 1,071,541
Disposals - (69,635) (69,635)
Depreciation expense 26,861 10,887 37,748
Balance at December 31, 2023 784,023 275631 1,039 654
Met book value, December 31, 2022 ] 56231 § /4TS % 24,706
Met book value, December 31, 2023 3 32663 § 27,588 § 60,251

SHARE CAPITAL
futhorized;
10,000,000 Ordinary voting shares of $1 par value each

|ssued;
2,000,000 Ordinary voting shares (2022: 2,000,000) $ 2,000,000 $ 2000000
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QUEENSGATE
(formerly Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Ltd.)

Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements
for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022
{expressed in United States dollars) {continued)

€. SHARE CAPITAL (conlinued)

The Directors may dadare dividends and distributions an shares in issue and aulhonse payment of the
dividends or distributions out of the funds of the Company, Mo dividend or distribution shall be paid
excapl oul of the realised or wnrealised profits ol the Company, For the year ended
December 31, 2023, a dividend of WS$225,000 was declared and paid (2022; nil), The righls confermad
upon the holders of the shares of any class issued with preferred or other rights shall not, unless
otherwise expressly provided by the terms of issue of the shares of that class, be deemed to be varied
by the craation arissue of fTurther shares ranking pan passu therewith,

7. SUBSIDIARIES

The consolidated financial stalements include the accoumts of the Company and s wholly-owned
subsidiares, Tilly Mominees Limiled and Coullry Directors Lid., and Tilly Mominees Limited, in lum, is
parent 1o two wholy-owned subsidianies, Tilly Directors Limited and Tilly Secretanes Limited (collectively,
the “Subsidiaries”). All of ihe subsidiaries listed below are Eoensed as Nominee (Trust) Companies wilh

CIMA,
Place of Proportion of ownership
Principal incorparation interest and voting power
Mame of subsidiary activity and oparation held by the Company
2023 2022
Provide nomines
Tilly Mominees Limited  shareholder services Cayman Islands 100% 100%
Provide corporate
Coultry Directors Lid director services  Cayman [slands 100% 100%
Provide corporate
Tilly Directors Limited director services  Cayman Islands 100% 100%
Provide company
Tilly Secrataries Limited secrelary services  Cayman |slands 100% 100%

The Company has nol provided Inancial suppor 1o s Subsidianes during the year, nor does it inlend o
provide financial or ofher suppor. There are no significant restriclions on the Company's ability to access
or use assels or sedlle liabilfies ol the Subsidianes.

As of December 31, 2023, guaraniees in the tolal amount of $975,610 (2022; $975,610) have been issued
by the Company 1o the Govemnment of the Cayman Islands on behall of is Subsidiarias,
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QUEENSGATE
(formerly Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Ltd.)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022
{expressed in United States dollars) {continued)

8. ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES

Administration expenses following:

2023 2022

Professional fees 5 333615 $ 285,172
IT costs 245,81 229,912
Government fees 223,549 222,080
Miscellaneous operating expenses 178,562 159,599
Utilities 100,489 101,857
3 1,082,185 5 1,008,720

9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Inclsded In the consolidaled fnancial stalements are the lollowing related parly balances and

Iransaclions:
2023 2022
As of December 31:
Due from clignts 3 - - =
Client accounts receivable 15,888 4 836
Depositors' accounts = i
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 15,853 22,727
For the years ended December 31,
Directorship, trustee and management fees $ 106,350 ] 238,800
Directors' fees (included in Administration expenses) 25,000 30,861
Rent expense 348,322 361,491

All transactions with related parlies are conducled on nommal commercial terms and al non-preferential
inferast rates,

Certain employees of the Company and certain assels of the Company are akso ulilised by the Parent
for its ongoing operations. The employees' services and use of the assets is currently not recharged to
the Parent and is nol separately quantifiable.

Some of the Company’s employees also provided directorship services to a number of clients who had
deposits and overdrafis with the Company during the year ended December 31, 2022,

The Company leases office space from a relaled parly. The annuwal lease expired on
August 31, 2011, The Company is currenily leasing the space on a month to month basis based on the
prior lease agreement.
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QUEENSGATE

(formerly Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Ltd.)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022
{expressed in United States dollars) {continued)

10. PENSION PLAN

11.

The Company has a defined conlribution pension schame in place for all of its qualifying employees,
Contribulions are calculated as a percentage of salary based on the prescrbed maximum of 5% amd
are matched by the Company. The Company pays the employees’ portion. The total pension cost
recognised during the year ended December 31, 2023 was 5130082 (2022; $144,360) and is included
in salaries and benefits in the consolidated statements of comprehensive incoms.,

RISK MANAGEMENT

A financial instrument is a conlract thal gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
of another enlity. The Company enlers inte contracts invalving financial instruments during the normsal
course of i1s business.

Risk exposwres ansing from financial instruments are monitored by managemenl. The main risks
arising from the Company's financial instruments are credit and counterparty risk, lguidity risk, market
rick, inleres! rate rsk and curmency nsk. The oxposure to, and management of, these risks &
summansed below. The year-end figures reporied in these consolidaled financial statements for
fimancial instruments are reflective of the pasilion held throeghout the year and are consisten! with the
objectives, policles and strategies approved by management.

Credit and counterparty risk

Credit and counterparty risk is the nsk that one parly 1o a financial instrument will cause a financial loss
for the other party by failing to discharge an obligation, Financial instruments which polenfially expose
the Campany 1o credi and counterparty nsk consist prirnq-lril',r al cash and cash equalents, due from
clienls and clien! accounts receivable,

The Company manages ifs exposure 1o credit and counterpartly risk by placing cash and fixed deposils
with a requiated fnancial institufion in the Cayman lslands, only laking referred business, amd
manitoring oulstanding receivable balances, as discussed in Note 4,

The Company has a concentration risk with all cash and cash equivalents being held by one financial
instflution in the Cayman Islands.

During the year ended December 31, 2023, approximalely 57.16% (2022: 53.97%) of the Company’s
directorship, trustee and management fees were eared from its three (2022; three) largest customers.
Mo other customers contributed more than 10% to the Company's directorship, trustee and
managemenl fees during 2023 or 2022.

Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
fimancial labilties,

Liquidity risk is monilored by the Company’s management to ensure that the Company has sufficient
hiquid assels to be able lo meesl its [ulure expected cash outllows, and maintains a significant proportion
of ils assals in cash in order lo manage kguidily nsk, Refer to interest rate nsk table disclosures Tor
analysis of lguidity gap.
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(formerly Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Ltd.)

Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements
for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022
{expressed in United States dollars)

{continued)

11. RISK MANAGEMENT (conlinued)

Market rizk

Markel risk is the rsk thal the fair value or fJulure cash flows of a fimancial instrument will Tucluate
because of changes in markel prices. Market risk for the Company comprises interest rale risk and
cUrTency rsk,

Intarest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the rsk thal the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instroment will lucloate
because of changes in market inlerest rates,

The Company manages its interest rale risk by ensuring thal the interes! rate on assels equals or
excesds thal of the relevant offselting liabdlity. The lables below summarise this malching as of
December 31, 2023 and 2022, tems are allocated to time bands by reference to the earier of the next

interest rate re-pricing date and the maturily date.

2023
Effactiva
Interest
Rate Less than Greater than
of Range %) _On demand 3 months 3 months Total
Monetary Assabs:
Cash and cash aquivalenis 0.03-35 § 6TBE842 5 - ¥ - § 6786842
Client accounts recaivaiie - 309,878 - - 300,878
Other recaivables - 58,2684 - - 58,204
§ 7158014 § - 8 - 5 7.158M4
Monetary Liabilithes:
Accounts payabla and accned
AXpanses -5 Bx7hah % - § - & 537585
$  EI7EE5 § - % - § 537585
Sensitivity/liquidity gap $ BE2419 3 - % - § 6626410
Page 17
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QUEENSGATE
(formerly Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Ltd.)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022
{expressed in United States dollars) {continued)

11. RISK MANAGEMENT (conlinued)

Intarest rate risk {continued)

2022
Effactive
Interest
Rate Less than Greater than
or Range (%) _On demand 3 months 3 months Total
Monetary Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 00314 5 1918277 § 4100000 $ = § 808z
D from clients - - - - -
Client accounts recaivable - 418,477 - - 418,477
Other recaivables - 11,048 = - 11,048
§ 234p803 5 4100000 5 - & 6448803
Monetary Liabilities:
Depositors’ accounts - % - % - % - & -
Accounts payable and accrved
BAPENSEE - 462 87T - - 462 677
$ 482877 § = 8 = 5 482 EVT
Sensltivitylliquidity gap 5 1886126 5 4100000 3§ - 5 5886126

The Company is exposed to risks associaled wilh the effects of flucluations in prevailing levels of fixed
and floating mterest rales on ils cash flows.

Al Decamber 31, 2023, with respect 1o the floating rate exposure, if markel inlerest rales had baen 20
(2022; 300 basis points higher with all olher variables held constant, shareholder's equily would have
been 523,561 lower (2022: 55,755 lower). If markel interest rales had been 30 (2022; 30) basis points
loweer with all other variables hekd constant, sharehokder's equily would have increased by less than
£3.561 (2022; would have increased by less than $5,755) due to the facl that certain account balances
eam interes! at a rate lower than 30 basis points,

Al December 31, 2023, with respect 1o the fixed rate exposure, i markel interest rates had been 30
(2022; 30 basis points higher with all olher variables held constand, shareholder's equity would have
been $16.800 higher (2022: 512,300 higher), If markel inlerest rates had been 30 (2022; 30) basis
points lower with all olher vanables held constant, shareholder's equily would have decreased by
516,800 (2022: would have decreased by less than 5122300 due to the fact that cedain account
balances eamed inlerest at a rate lower than 30 basis poinls).

Page 18
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QUEENSGATE
(formerly Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Ltd.)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022
{expressed in United States dollars) {continued)

11.

12

134,

RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Intarest rate risk {continued)

This analysis is based on inlerest bearing instruments held at year-end, and assumes the change in
interest rates took place al the beginning of the year and the interest bearng instruments were hakd
conslant throughoul the reporting perod. Thidy basis paints is the sensitivity rale used when repaorting
interest rate risk inlemally to key management personnel and represents management's assessmeant
of the possible change in market rales for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022,

Currancy risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will flucluate due o changes in foreign
exchange rates.

The Company operates in the Cayman Islands, and mainly hokds instruments with net exposures to the
Cayman |slands dollar (2022:Cayman Islands dollar). The Cayman Islands dollar has a fixed exchange
rale against the United States dollar.

For the year ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, no foreign cumency assels or liabilities were hekd
other than the Cayman Islands dollar, which is pegged to the United States dollar,

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company manages s capital to ensure thatl the Company will be able lo continue as a going
concarn while maximising the return Lo the shareholder throwgh the {;t;lirru'e;aiinn of the debl and equily
balance, The Company's overall strategy remains unchanged from 2022,

The capital structure of the Company consists of issued Ordinary voling shares and retained eamings.
REGULATORY MATTERS

The Company is subject to regulatory capital requirements established by CIMA.  Failure to meet
minimum capital requirements can Initiaie cerlain actions by the regulator thal, if underdaken, coulkd
hawve a direct material effect on the Company's consolidated financial statements.  Under capital
adequacy guidelines used by CIMA and prescrbed under The Banks and Trust Companies Law ol the
Cayman Islands, the Company must meel specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures
of the Company's asseis, labilites, and certain off-balance sheel lemns as calculaled under regulatory
accounting practices. The Company's capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative
judgments by CIMA aboul compenents and risk welghtings.

Prior lo the surrender of the Class B Banking License, the Company was required to maintain a capilal
adequacy ratio of at keast 15%. The Company was in compliance with this requirement as at and for
the year ended December 31, 2022 and for the period lrom January 1, 2023 to Oclober 5, {license
surrender dale).

Under the lemms of its lcenses, the Company is required to maintain 8 minimum nel worth of
K D400,000 (USS5500,000). The Company is in compliance with Lhis requirement as al and for the
years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022,

Page 19
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QUEENSGATE
(formerly Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Ltd.)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022
{expressed in United States dollars) {continued)

14. APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial stalaments wera approved by a commitlea of the Board of Direclars and
authonzed for issue on March 11, 2024,
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Independent auditor’s report

To FirstCaribbean International Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
not in its individual capacity but solely as Trustee of Global High Yield Bond Fund Currency Selection, a series
trust of DIAM Cayman Trust

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Global
High Yield Bond Fund Currency Selection (the Class Fund), a series trust of DIAM Cayman Trust as at
January 31, 2024, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
IFRS Accounting Standards.

What we have audited
The Class Fund's financial statements comprise:

the statement of financial position as at January 31, 2024;
the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
the statement of changes in net assets attributable to unitholders for the year then ended;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, comprising material accounting policy information and other
explanatory information.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Class Fund in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants (IESBA Code). We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
IESBA Code.

Other information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the supplementary
schedule of investments (unaudited), (but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon).

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with IFRS Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Class Fund’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Class Fund or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’'s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Class Fund’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Class Fund's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Class Fund to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Other matter

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Class Fund in accordance with the
terms of our engagement letter and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it
may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Cayman Islands

July 5, 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR*S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Queensgate (formerly Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Ltd.)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Queensgate and its subsidiaries (the
"Company'™), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at December 31, 2023 and
2022, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in shareholder®s equity and cash
flows for the years then ended (all expressed in United States Dollars), and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2023 and 2022, and its financial
performance, and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor”s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants® Interenational Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (1ESBA Code), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company*s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company*s financial reporting process.

Auditor®s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor"s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting fromerror, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company®s internal control.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management”s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company®s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor”s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor®s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Deloitte & Touche LLP
March 11, 2024
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